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On behalf of the board (the “Beard”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the final results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2025 (the “Current Year”).

As of 31 March 2025, the total assets of the Group reached approximately
HK$1,510.8 million, and the profit attributable to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Current Year was approximately
HK$16.1 million, compare to that of the loss of HK$126.8 million for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Last Year”).

In the Current Year, the Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of property investment, property development, hotel operations, provision
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services and
trading and developing of premium white spirit in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Coronavirus disease with the greatest fallout in a recent century broke
out, it has an unprecedented infectiosity and it had spread to every corner
of the world in just two to three months, including the largest economies
such as the United States, China, Europe and Japan. To fight against the
outbreak, the strictest isolation measures have been introduced all over
the world, including the lockdown and closure measures, which up to this
date, have not been entirely lifted. The daily activities of the people have
been forced to suspend, and more importantly, the production activities
have been halted, which has seriously affected the global economy. So
far, the priority of the governments around the world is still to combat the
outbreak. Although the central banks of various countries have introduced
massive bailout measures to boost the weak economy, it is believed
that the global economy can only gradually recover after the outbreak is
contained and demand rises.
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Chairman’s Report (continued)
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The Group’s property development project Golden Beach No. 1 project
(the “Golden Beach No. 1 Project”) located in Weihai, Shandong, the
PRC is originally expected to be completed in full in the fourth quarter of
2020. However, affected by the outbreak of coronavirus, the construction
progress was substantially delayed. The current expected completion
time for the project will be delayed to 2026/2027. The Golden Beach No.
1 Project will have a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of the
gross floor area with over 1,600 apartment suites and 360 car parking
spaces. Among which, approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross
floor area will be available for sale as serviced apartments.

According to a report issued by the independent valuer engaged by the
Group, based on (among other things) the current property price levels in
Weihai, the aggregate market value of the whole project including serviced
apartments, hotel and related retail premises and car-parking spaces is
valued at approximately RMB808 million at the current stage. The Group
believes that the Weihai property will become a new source of income and
generate stable cash flow for the Group.

In prior years, the Group launched a new business, namely trading and
developing of premium white spirit in China. The white spirit business
provided the Group with another sustainable business development
opportunity and stable operating cash flow.

The Group creates long-term value based on its prudent and sound
governance principles and risk management. It has laid a solid foundation
for its long-term development by continuously ensuring asset quality and
financial resources.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and all of the business
associates for their continued support for and confidence in the Group.
| also wish to express our sincere appreciation to our management and
employees as a whole for their positive efforts over the years.

Wei Zhenming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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Management

BUSINESS REVIEW
Introduction

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the
business of property investment, property development, hotel operations
and comprehensive healthcare business and trading and developing of
premium white spirit in the PRC.

Property development

The Group’s current investment in property development comprises
approximately 1,400 serviced apartment units in the project located at
Golden Beach No. 1, Golden Beach Garden, south of Bei Huan Hai Road
and east of Ren Tai Garden, Gao District, Weihai city, Shandong province,
the PRC (the “Weihai Property”) currently under development and to be
sold by the Group. The Weihai Property is wholly-owned by the Group.

Hotel operations

The Group’s current investment in hotel operations consist of the hotel
development in the Weihai Property.

The Group’s hotel operations comprise approximately 200 hotel suites in
the Weihai Property to be managed by a world-renowned hotel group as
hotel manager under the management agreement between the Group and
the said hotel group. The hotel is currently under construction.

Comprehensive healthcare business

The business segment, comprehensive healthcare business was
established in prior years. Currently, this business segment includes
mainly provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services to healthcare business operators, including preliminary planning,
research, establishment, staff training, post-establishment operation and
management.

Trading and developing of Premium White Spirit

The Group started trading and developing the premium white spirit in
2023 and the Group believe the new business will provide the Group with
sustainable business development opportunity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BIRE WK D @

A.

*

3

The Group’s investment in Property Development
The Weihai Property

The Weihai Property consists of three high rise hotel buildings with
a total gross floor area of approximately 195,000 square metres,
of which the entire area were originally intended for hotel use.
The Group’s management observed that Weihai has become an
increasingly popular destination for the retired population in recent
years which, coupled with the rapid growth of the tourism sector,
has resulted in a consistent influx of migrants and an increased
demand for properties. The Group’s management considered
such development in Weihai will continue to benefit its hotel
industry and the local property market. In light of the above, the
Group’s management resolved in the financial year of 2017/18
that approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross floor area
of the Weihai Property shall be renovated and utilized as serviced
apartments.

8 B Bk B K B % A PR A B (Weihai Guosheng Runhe Property
Development Co. Ltd.*) (“Weihai Runhe”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Commaodity Housing Pre-
sale Permit in the third quarter of 2018, after which pre-sale of the
serviced apartments of Weihai Property started.

As at the date of this report, the accumulated total pre-sales by
Weihai Runhe amounted to approximately RMB207 million, and the
total saleable area pre-sold is approximately 17,000 square metres.
The relevant pre-sale amounts are expected to be recognised as
revenue in the financial year of 2026/2027, as the construction
and renovation works of the serviced apartment units are currently
expected to be completed in 2026/2027.

For identification purpose only
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*

Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (Continued)

Financing of development of the Weihai Property

It is expected that the preliminary initial costs (excluding the land
costs which was paid by the Group through acquisition of the
offshore holding company of the PRC company for development
of the Weihai Property) for development of the Weihai Property
will exceed RMB1 billion. Part of the Group’s plan to finance the
development of the Weihai Property is pre-sale of the serviced
apartment units as disclosed above.

In November 2018, Weihai Runhe entered into an entrusted debt
investment agreement (the “Asia Alliance Asset Loan”) with ooB: B2
BEEEAMR QT (AFCA AMC Co., Ltd.*), through Harbin Bank
Tianjin Branch, pursuant to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan
facility of RMB660 million for a term of 3 years, bearing interest at
6.6% per annum. The final drawdown amount was RMB500 million
with the remaining undrawn facility amount lapsed.

The Management considered that the Weihai Property would be
sufficiently financed through (i) the cash flow generated from pre-
sale of the serviced apartments; (ii) loan facilities such as the
facilities mentioned above; (iii) financing of the development costs
by contractor for obtaining interest return from the Group; and (iv)
other capital arrangements as may be entered into by the Group
from time to time.

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BIRE WK D @

10

The Group’s Hotel Operations
The Weihai Property

Among the three buildings of the Weihai Property, the highest
building of which would partially be built into a hotel. Affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19, the construction progress was severely
hindered. The estimated completion time will be postponed from
2021 to 2026/2027. The main building of the Weihai Property is
expected to stand approximately at 149.8 metres height, making it
a landmark along the Golden Beach in Weihai. It is also expected to
be the highest building in Weihai.

When the Group completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property in
September 2017, it included a management agreement with a world-
renowned hotel group as hotel manager. Under the management
agreement, the hotel manager will provide consultancy, design
and monitoring services in the course of the development of the
hotel floors, and manage the operations of the hotel premises upon
completion. The hotel is expected to be b-star international standard
and target high-end business and leisure travelers.

The hotel complex is under construction at the moment. Upon
completion of the construction and renovation works (expected to
be in 2026/2027), the hotel is expected to provide about 200 luxury
suites and rooms.

The Group’s Comprehensive Healthcare Business

The business segment, comprehensive healthcare planning
and management services was established in recent years. The
Group successfully engaged in attracting professional teams with
extensive experience in these sectors and has comprehensive
project resources with customer network. This business is aiming to
operate with the goal of building the brand of “Grandlife Healthcare
Group”. Currently, this segment services mainly focus on provision
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services
such as preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff training
and post-establishment operation and management to healthcare
business operators.

Trading and Developing of Premium White Spirit

The white spirit business in China is a enormous market. The Group
started trading and developing the premium white spirit in 2023
and the Group believe the new business will provide the Group with
sustainable business development opportunity.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Performance Indicators

BB & DT

Bt 75 O R

EERRER

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—-HLFE

2025 2024
—EC-HF —ZT_mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FiIT
(Restated)
(g&&E5)
Revenue Wz 111,407 183,461
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company KAREE AFERER,(EE) 16,136 (126,785)
Earning/(loss) per share (HK cents) A, (E8) GBI 7.37 (70.25)
As at 31 March
W=A=+—AH
2025 2024
—E_RE ZEZEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
Total assets EEE 1,510,839 1,438,155
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company RARIEBANEIEFEE 374,701 121,198
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH 112,022 179,213
Borrowings BE 797,497 808,726
Net borrowings/net assets attributable to owners RARHBANRNFER FEE
of the Company 182.9% 519.4%

Revenue

Revenue amounted to approximately HK$111.4 million for the Current
Years as compared to HK$183.5 million for the Last Year. The revenue
decrease during the year due to the adverse market condition in the PRC
during the year.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$6.8 million
for the Current Year, representing an decrease of approximately HK$1.5
million or approximately 18% as compared to that of approximately
HK$8.3 million for the Last Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

RN =R EC S EARINe )

Finance Costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.06 million for the
Current Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$47.3 million
or approximately 99.9% as compared to that of approximately HK$47.4
million for the Last Year. The decrease during the year was due to the
agreement to terminate the interest payment from the borrowing.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the Current Year, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$16.1 million (Last Year loss:
approximately HK$126.8 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Current Year, the Group’s sources of fund primarily included
income generated from business operations and equity financing from
rights issue and the general mandate.

The Group expects that income generated from business operations
and equity financing will continue to be the main sources of funds in the
coming year. Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow
management, improve the efficiency of capital returns on projects and
stringently control the cost and various expenses. Besides, the Group will
continue to look for opportunities to cooperate with foreign and domestic
investors, in order to provide other sources of funding for the expansion of
projects and business development.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$112.0 million as compared to the bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$179.2 million as at 31 March 2024.

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately HK$1
billion as at 31 March 2025, against approximately net current liabilities
of HK$31 million as at 31 March 2024. The Group’s current ratio (i.e.
current assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately 4.27x as at
31 March 2025 and approximately 0.98x as at 31 March 2024.

Crown International Corporation Limited
].2 Annual Report 2024/2025
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (Continued)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for the Current Year included expenditure
on fixed assets of approximately HK$46.0 million (Last Year: approximately
HK$0.89 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2025,

(@) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or
guarantees (31 March 2024: Nil); and

(b) the Group has capital expenditure for hotel properties contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
the amount of approximately HK$111.0 million (31 March 2024:
HK$112.3 million) in respect of the construction of the hotel
properties.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group’s interests in the Weihai
Property, and the equity interests in a PRC subsidiary which control the
Weihai Property were pledged to an independent third party as security for
borrowings with outstanding principle amount of RMB500.0 million (31
March 2025); approximately RMB500.0 million (31 March 2024).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Company is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is mainly responsible
for corporate financing and administration, and engaged in investment
holding. The business of the Company’s subsidiaries primarily involves
operations and investments in the PRC, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in Renminbi. If necessary, the Group will consider using
forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposures.
The main foreign exchange exposure is from Renminbi; however as
both revenue and expenditure of the Group’s business are dominated in
Renminbi, the Directors believe that the Group does not have significant
foreign exchange exposure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEET & D @

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the year, the Group acquired 100% interest in B4 )Il X i & &
08 2 5% @ A R 2 /) at consideration of RMB30 million (equivalent to
HK$32.1 million) to leverage on its advantages in industrial chains to
provide production support for the Group’s premium white spirit business.

There was no material disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies
by the Group for the Current Year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 March 2024: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total of 19 employees (31 March
2024: 19 employees), including executive Directors. The remuneration
and staff cost for the Current Year were approximately HK$5.1 million (Last
Year: approximately HK$5.1 million). The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for the executive Directors and senior management were
determined by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of the
Company while those for other employees were reviewed and approved
by the chief executive officer of the Company. The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance
and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option
scheme for its employees and executive Directors.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The current and future principal business of the Group includes property
investment, property development, hotel operations, provision of
comprehensive healthcare planning and management services and trading
and developing of premium white spirit in the PRC.

For the property investment, due to the adverse economy in the PRC, the
Board disposed the investment property in order to generate positive cash
flow and significant increase in the Group’s revenue during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

For the property development, pre-sale of the apartment units of the
Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase | located in Weihai, Shandong
province, the key project of the Group, has commenced in the third
quarter of 2018. The project was expected to be completed and delivered
in the fourth quarter of 2021. However, affected by the outbreak of
COVID-19, the construction progress was delayed and the latest estimated
completion time will second half of 2026. The Group will then be able to
recognise sales revenue from the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase | in
the financial year of 2026/2027.

For the hotel operations, the hotel of the Golden Beach No. 1 Project
phase | located in Weihai, Shandong province is under construction.
Also affected by the outbreak of COVID-19, the hotel is expected to be
completed and start operating in 2027. The hotel of the Golden Beach
No. 1 Project phase | will be a new landmark and being the highest
building of Weihai city, Shandong province. The hotel will be managed
by a world-renowned hotel management company, making it the first
international five-star hotel of the city.

Suffering from the global weak economy, the financial consultancy service
business remained dormant and management will monitor the market
situation to adjust its business direction.

The business segment of comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services business is progressing steadily since its
establishment in 2020. Currently, the comprehensive healthcare planning
and management services business includes provision of services to
healthcare business operators, including preliminary planning, research,
establishment, staff training and post-establishment operation and
management. The Group has professional teams with extensive experience
in these sectors and has comprehensive project resources and customer
network. The Group is under the development to cooperate with property
owners to modify property projects into high-end healthcare projects and
combined with the capital operation of insurance companies and financial
institutions to jointly operate healthcare projects.

Starting from 2023, the Group has engaged in trading and developing of
premium white spirit and providing the Group significant increase in its
cash flow and revenue.

The COVID-19 pandemic that broke out in early 2020 has seriously
affected the global economy. It has been more than a year since the
outbreak began. In the coming years, global economic recovery is very
much dependent upon the efficiency of rapid mass vaccination programs
and sustainable recovery policies rolled out by the respective governments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEET & D @

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The main businesses of the Group include property investment, property
development, hotel operations and comprehensive healthcare business
in the PRC. Since substantial of the businesses of the Group are located
in China, the main risks and uncertainties of the Group have been closely
related to the demand, economic performance and political environment
in China.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia in China in early 2020
severely affected the normal life in China with unprecedented measures
such as the nationwide lockdown and the closure of customs, the
suspension of production activities and markets and the prohibition of
foreign entry. During the epidemic, normal business transactions, factory
production activities and other activities were forced to suspend. The entire
economic circle and supply chain suffered heavy losses and demand was
severely weighed down. However, under the sturdy and effective control of
the Chinese government, the epidemic has gradually eased, and therefore,
China has recovered faster than the European countries and the United
States, taking the lead in the economic recovery. However, if the novel
coronavirus pneumonia epidemic relapses in the future or even becomes
endemic which will continue to affect the economic environment, the
longer the duration, the more it will affect the operations of the Group.

Since a large portion of the Group’s business resources are invested in
property investment and property development, China’s macro-control
policies on the real estate industry are also the main source of risks for
the Group. Based on the experience of the past ten years, the Chinese
government’s regulation of the domestic real estate industry highly
depends on the economic situation. When the economy is overheated, the
government will introduce regulatory policies such as restricting purchases
and prices, restricting project loans and restricting mortgages to curb an
overheated economy. On the other hand, in times when the economy
suffers, the government may relax the relevant policies again. The
domestic economy has been greatly damaged because of the outbreak
of the novel coronavirus pneumonia. It is expected that the Chinese
government will launch many economic stimulus measures to save the
economy, from which the real estate industry is expected to benefit.

China has a wide range of taxes for the real estate industry, such as land
value-added tax, real estate tax, value-added tax, urban construction
tax and education surcharges and corporate income tax. The real estate
industry is far more taxed than other industries. Thus, changes in taxation
policies will have a significant impact on the profitability of the Group.
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (Continued)

As the Group’s assets mainly located in China and denominated in RMB,
the changes in currency rate between RMB and HKD will have certain
impact to the Group.

In addition to the aforesaid risks and uncertainties, the Group’s analysis on
the credit risk and liquidity risk are detailed in the note 3.2 financial risk
factors of the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with a view to enhancing the management of the
Company as well as preserving the interest of its shareholders as a whole.
The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). Throughout the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of
this report, the Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company’s
corporate governance policies to ensure compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are its valuable assets. The Group’s
employee management focuses on recruiting and developing talents. Staff
performance is measured on a regular and structured basis to provide
employees with appropriate feedback and to ensure their alignment
with the Group’s corporate strategy. The Group also understands that
maintaining a good long-term relationship with business partners is one
of its primary objectives. Accordingly, the management has used its best
endeavours to maintain good communications, promptly exchanged ideas
and shared business updates with them when appropriate. During the
Current Year, there was no material or significant dispute between the
Group and its customers, suppliers and business partners.
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Directors’ Biographies

EE[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Zhenming, Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company

Mr. Wei, aged 61, has over 40 years of business experience in Mainland
China. Mr. Wei has acted as the President of Beijing Sheyangtang Health
Management Co., Ltd. Ut REE EEFEE I AR A 7)) which has been
operating a comprehensive healthcare business since 2020.

Mr. Deng Jianguo, Member of the Executive Committee

Mr. Deng, aged 56, has more than 30 years of experience in technology
and business management. Mr. Deng is mainly engaged in property
development and is a successful entrepreneur. Mr. Deng obtained a
Beacher’s degree in mechanical design, manufacturing and automation
from Heilongjiang University in 1990. After his graduation, Mr. Deng
worked in different companies as a technician in the field of machinery.
In 1998, Mr. Deng founded and served as the chairman of Weihai Haole
Functional Water Equipment Company Limited. Since 2024, Mr. Deng
has served as the general manager of Weihai Guosheng Real Estate
Development Company Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Ms. Hu Ruixuan, Chairman of the RANC and Member of the Audit Committee

Ms. Hu, aged 30, has extensive experience in corporate management,
marketing and public relations. Ms. Hu obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
directing, majoring in advertising planning and new media production from
Sichuan Normal University in 2011. Afterwards, she obtained a Master's
degree in management, majoring in international marketing from the
Leicester University of the United Kingdom. Ms. Hu joined China Media
Group served as an operations specialist and was responsible for the
group’s international communication in 2020.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. Wong Wai Kit, Member of the Audit Committee and Member of the RQNC

Mr. Wong, aged 41, has 20 years of experience in sales and
merchandising and served as purchasing manager at Aojun Technology
Co. Limited in 2014. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor's degree in business
management from University Auckland in 1994.

Ms. Lo Lai Lai Samantha, Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of
the RANC

Ms. Lo, aged 44, obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from Lingnan University in 2002 and is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lo has extensive
experience in financial management, accounting and corporate finance
and has accumulated over 20 years of expertise across various industries
including trading, manufacturing and property development. Ms. Lo is
particularly skilled in financial analysis and planning, leveraging her deep
understanding of the financial landscapes in these diverse sectors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents the corporate governance report of the Group for the
Current Year.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving
for the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasise on a
quality Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of
information and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the
Group’s management are committed to continuously improving corporate
governance practices and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic
value of the Company.

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with a view to enhancing the management of
the Company as well as preserving the interest of its Shareholders as a
whole. The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) save as
disclosed below.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

THE BOARD
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total of five
Directors, being two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section headed
“Report of the Directors” of this annual report. The Company has also
maintained on its website and on the Stock Exchange’s website an
updated list of the Directors identifying their role and function and whether
they are independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Wei Zhenming appointed as executive Director on 10 November
2023. Mr. Wei Zhenming was appointed for a term of three years and
shall be renewed automatically for consecutive periods of one year each
subject to termination by either party with one month’s written notice.
Mr. Deng Jianguo appointed as executive Director on 15 August 2024.
Mr. Deng Jianguo was appointed for a term of three years and shall be
renewed automatically for consecutive periods of one year each subject
to termination by either party with one month’s written notice. Ms. Hu
Ruixuan was appointed as Independent non-executive Director on 15
August 2024, Mr. Wong Wai Kit was appointed as Independent non-
executive Director on 15 August 2024 and Ms. Lo Lai Lai Samantha was
appointed as Independent non-executive Director on 9 July 2024. The
Independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three
years.

The executive Director and independent non-executive Directors shall
be subject to retirement at the following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting, and
shall also be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the annual general meetings of the Company since his last
re-election pursuant to articles of association of the Company.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” on pages 18 to 19 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRET @

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments with
an indication of the time involved.

The Board currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors.
Each independent non-executive Director, pursuant to the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, has confirmed he had been
independent of the Company throughout the year ended 31 March 2025
and up to the date of this report, and the Company also considers that
they have been independent. Save as disclosed, there is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) between each Director (including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director) and the other members of the Board
or the senior management and between the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development
of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During
the Current Year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
All Directors have been required to provide the Company their records of
training received for the Current Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against the
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five members
coming from various professional backgrounds including property
development, accounting and corporate governance, etc. The Board is of
the view that the current Board has provided a good balance of skills and
experience to the Company and will continue to review its composition
from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.

Directors’ Nomination and Appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates
for directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or more
Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at the general meeting
of the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship
for appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during
the year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and be eligible for re-election.
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The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing
market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Current Year are set out
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Board Practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice
of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable
notice will be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
and available for inspection by the Directors. Directors have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior management, and
full and unrestricted access to relevant information in a timely manner
with appropriate information in such form and of such quality as will
enable them to make an informed decision and discharge their duties
and responsibilities. The Board ensures that Directors are provided with
sufficient resources in the furtherance of their duties as Board/committee
members, including access to independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

During the Current Year, 16 Board meetings were held and the attendance
record is set out below:

EECNAFEENLRTTARESS
4L s T

TEERRE @

=
%

b=l

No. of Attendance/
Eligible to Attend

HERY,SEREHERH
Annual Extraordinary
Board General General
Meeting Meeting* Meeting*
Directors E= EEg RRBEAS* BRREHAS
Mr. WEI Zhenming IR E 16/16 11 2/2
Mr. CHAN Yuk Charm! BRASE S A 6/12 N/ATE A N/AT i A
Ms. LIU Ting? BlfEt2 2/2 N/A“R 3 F N/AZT i
Mr. XIAO Ganghua® B I e A3 6/7 N/A 33 A N/A 33 A
Mr. NG Ki Man* RAEG T 5/5 N/ATE A N/A-TiE A
Mr. DENG Jianguo® PR E fAS 8/9 0/1 0/2
Ms. HU Ruixuan® FARS e AL 0 9/9 0/1 0/2
Mr. WONG Wai Kit® mEGRFES 9/9 0/1 02
Ms. LO Lai Lai Samantha® EEEZ T 13/13 0/1 0/2

. removed on 10 January 2025

e resigned on 9 July 2024

2 resigned on 22 August 2024

& resigned on 13 August 2024

) appointed on 15 August 2024

e appointed on 9 July 2024

* The 2024 AGM held on 27 September 2024.

i 2 extraordinary general meetings of Company (“EGM”) were held on 10
January 2025 and 26 March 2025.
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According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected,
shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting. Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director
shall retire by rotation at least once every three years. The Board will
ensure that each Director shall retire by rotation in the above manner in
order to comply with the code provisions of the CG Code.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to
re-election by Shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/
her appointment.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive Director who has served
the Board for more than nine years, should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company. The term of office is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association
and the CG Code.

As equal Board members, the independent non-executive Directors give
the Board and the Board committees on which they serve the benefit
of their skills, expertise and various backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation. They make positive
contributions to the development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments.

Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The independent non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the
Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the Group’s
management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and
commercial strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting
and controls, internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board
memberships, remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance
matters and policy setting.

The Group’s management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned
to it from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the
Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors. As at the
date of this annual report, the Executive Committee is chaired by Mr. Wei
Zhenming and the member is Mr. Deng Jianguo.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and
financial experience and skills to undertake the review of financial
statements in accordance with good practice of financial reporting. During
the Current Year and up to the date of this annual report, Ms. Lo Lai Lai
Samantha has been appointed as chairman of the Audit Committee on
9 July 2024. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
consists Ms. Hu Ruixuan and Mr. Wong Wai Kit.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee
arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(2)  to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(3) to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(4) to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor
for the provision of non-audit services;

(5) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before
submission to the Board;

(6) to review financial control, risk management and internal control
systems;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

(7) to discuss the internal control system with the Group’s management
to ensure that the Group’s management has performed its duty to
have an effective control system, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function;

(8) to review the Independent Auditor’'s management letters, any
material queries raised by the Independent Auditor to the Group’s
management about accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the Group’s management’s response; and

(9) to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the Current Year and the
attendance record is set out below:

TEEBRRE @)

(7) EAKEEEENWABEERS  #
RAEBERECBITHEBAEREER
MBS - BEREARNRFGF M
PR 2 ER - BT EFERLR - 15
EtBINEERREM

(8) HRBIUZHBEIZERKM - BUZH
B ASREEREEREEMSLE
AR B HERERR M EREHINA
RAGEEEERE : K&

Q) REFGEREERERLTATRMEX
C33Z%H-

ERZEERNAFERITTZREE  HE
LEEEHSINT -

i3

No. of

Attendance/

Eligible to

Attend

HERE

Directors 2= EEREERY
Ms. LIU Ting! Bfe 2z 4! 2/2
Mr. XIAO Ganghua? B [ e A2 2/2
Mr. NG Ki Man? REGEE 2/2
Ms. LO Lai Lai Samantha* EEEZT! 11
Ms. HU Ruixuan® RS 2L £ 171
Mr. WONG Wai Kit® |mEGEES 11

. resigned on 9 July 2024

e resigned on 22 August 2024

S resigned on 13 August 2024

& appointed on 9 July 2024

J appointed on 15 August 2024
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The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Current
Year included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the
review of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 and interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2024 with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has
also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system,
approved the internal audit report and reviewed and recommended the
appointment and re- appointment of the Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Current Year, including the accounting principles and
practice adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for
consideration. The Audit Committee has also recommended the
re-appointment of CCTH CPA Limited (“CCTH”) as the Independent
Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

RQNC

The RQNC comprises three independent non-executive Directors. As at
the date of this annual report, the RQNC is chaired by Ms. Hu Ruixuan
and the members are Ms. Lo Lai Lai Samantha and Mr. Wong Wai Kit.

The terms of reference of the RQNC were revised on 1 January 2019
which are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Its principal duties are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management, and to draw up procedures for formulating
an incentive-based remuneration policy. The RQNC is authorised by
the Board to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management, and
is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on remuneration
of non-executive Directors. No Director or any of his associates will be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance
of the executive Directors, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, determining the policy for the nomination of the
Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group.

The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office
or appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is
otherwise fair and not excessive.

The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.
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During the Current Year, the RQNC held 6 meetings and the attendance REEE T =ERRBZESETT
record is set out below: NREHE - HFELEEIAT

No. of

Attendance/

Eligible to

Attend

HERE,

Directors ) EEBHERE

Ms. LIU Ting! BiE 4t 2/2

Mr. XIAO Ganghua? e 5/5

Mr. NG Ki Man® RAEAGEES 3/3

Ms. LO Lai Lai Samantha* EEEZT 4/4

Ms. HU Ruixuan® FARS R L 15 2/2

Mr. WONG Wai Kit5 HEA K ES 2/2

. resigned on 9 July 2024

e resigned on 22 August 2024
S resigned on 13 August 2024
& appointed on 9 July 2024

e appointed on 15 August 2024

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Current Year included
review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors
and the assessment of the independence of INEDs.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments of
the members of the senior management of the Group by bands is set out
below:

! RZZE-MFLANREEHE

2 RZZTZ_MFENAZ+—ABEEHT
: RZZE-MENRT=EEBHE
¢ R-ZB-_NFLRNBEERE

° RZZ-_MFENATRREZRE

RAEE  FM RERERZESETZ
IZTFERRTESTERE  RBRRKE
HE RRELRENZIEFTRLEER
& ARRHEBYIFTESR 2B

RIBEEEATZTAERNB.1.5 - A&H
=AREIRER B NSRRI ESII T

Number of
Individuals
Remuneration Bands e A8 B AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 5)

HK$1,000,001- HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 722 1,500,000/8 7T
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the
Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as required under
the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries by
the Company, all the Directors have confirmed their compliance with the
Securities Code in their securities transactions during the Current Year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Current Year were audited by CCTH whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that CCTH be nominated for
re-appointment as the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

CCTH provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’'s objectivity and safeguard
independence.

For the Current Year, audit services fee and non-audit services fee
amounted to approximately HK$1.2 million and HK$0.1 million
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgment and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

CCTH CPA Limited, the Independent Auditor, has presented its
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report in respect of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Current Year as set
out on pages 97 to 195 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledge its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Management Committee, has
conducted annual review for the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

The management monitors the assessment of the risk management and
internal controls and has confirmed to the Board and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority. Self-evaluation has been
conducted annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied
with by each department.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various
aspects including key operational and financial processes, regulatory
compliance and information security. The management, in coordination
with department heads, assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide
treatment plans, and monitor the risk management progress. The Internal
Audit Department is responsible for providing the internal audit function
and performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting practices
and all material controls and provided its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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The Group adopts the following procedures and internal control measures
to handle and release inside information:

1.  When handling affairs, the Company will fully consider the
disclosure requirements under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules
and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission;

2. The Administrative Procedures on the Information Disclosures of
the Group govern the Company’s communications with third parties,
especially the procedures for responding to outside inquiries about
the Group’s affairs, enabling specific personnel to obtain relevant
authorizations;

3. The Company widely and non-exclusively discloses information
to the public through financial reports, announcements and the
Company’s website, etc., to implement and disclose the Company’s
fair disclosure policy;

4. Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information is strictly
prohibited in the Company’s Compliance Management Manual.

The Board, as supported by the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems by reviewing the management report and the internal audit
report and considered that, for the year ended 31 March 2025, the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are effective
and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

The Company Secretary complied with the professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Current Year.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition
of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it.

The Company arranges for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
to be sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Shareholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary. The
letter shall state clearly the identity of the Shareholder, the amount of
shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable
and practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond
according to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Shareholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as
follows:

Address: Suite 2707, 27th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2121 0988

Fax: (852) 2121 0989

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)
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The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all
relevant circulars to Shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. The chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board Committee (where
applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’
meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and a timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
(http://www.crown727.com).

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. During the Current Year, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of property investment, property development,
hotel operations, comprehensive healthcare business, and trading of
premium white spirit. The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Current Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 103 of this annual report.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Current Year (Last Year: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 196 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Current
Year, the key factors affecting its results and financial position, the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with
laws and regulations are set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report and “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders’ relationship is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Current Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 84.5% of the Group’s total turnover and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 100% of the Group’s total turnover. The purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was 100% of the Group’s total
cost of sales.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Current Year (Last
Year: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Current Year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 106 of this annual report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2025,
calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to Nil (31 March 2024: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE [BE - HEmZEBOAA ATz L
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES mEH

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the RAFE - A5 I 808 O {E ] R B R P
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its MZARBKRG ([BRE]) - MARRKEA
subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Current Year. aIB B~ RIS B s ST RRAD ©

DIRECTORS ==
The Directors during the Current Year and up to the date of this annual RAFERBEAFRAPIEZ2EEWOT

report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Zhenming (Chairman)
Mr. DENG Jianguo

(appointed on 15 August 2024)
Mr. CHAN Yuk Charm

(removed on 10 January 2025)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LO Lai Lai Samantha

(appointed on 9 July 2024)
Ms. HU Ruixuan

(appointed on 15 August 2024)
Mr. WONG Wai Kit

(appointed on 15 August 2024)
Ms. LIU Ting

(resigned on 9 July 2024)
Mr. XIAO Ganghua

(resigned on 22 August 2024)
Mr. NG Ki Man

(resigned on 13 August 2024)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. WEI Zhenming (Chairman)
Mr. DENG Jianguo

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. LO Lai Lai Samantha (Chairman)
Ms. HU Ruixuan
Mr. WONG Wai Kit
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Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and not less than one-third)
who have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed
by the Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Ms. Hu Ruixuan and Mr. Deng Jianguo shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms. Lo Lai Lai
Samantha, Ms. Hu Ruixuan and Mr. Wong Wai Kit an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. At
the date of this annual report, the Company considers all of them to be
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 18 to 19 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including executive Directors
and INEDs) were determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their respective positions
in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
Current Year, and no equity-linked agreements to which the Company is a
party subsisted as at 31 March 2025.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders or substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or their respective close associate (as defined
in the Listing Rules) was interested in any business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at end of the Current Year or at any time during the Current Year.

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, there are
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries, and no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries, which subsisted at end of the Current Year or at
any time during the Current Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Current Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEERE@

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2025, there are no interests of the Directors or the chief
executives of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SF0”)) which were required:
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO; or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests or short positions of the corporations or
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares’ issued Shares®
B, AT
IR E B EEME FERARR 7 Gz B DLs
CLC Beneficial owner! 60,949,100 (L) 19.1%
EnEH EmEa Al
CLF Interest of controlled corporation? 60,949,100 (L) 19.1%
RIEEE 2 !
CIF Interest of controlled corporations! 60,949,100 (L) 19.1%

RYORE 2 !
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Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares’ issued Shares®
B HEB BT
BREE EEME FEEIR 127 BinzBE DS
Redstone Interest of controlled corporations! 60,949,100 (L) 19.1%
ZYEEE 2 !
Eternal Glory Beneficial owner? 5,116,800 (L) 1.60%
KETELE B A A
Interest of controlled corporation? 5,500,000 (L) 1.70%
ANElA e
Rising Century Beneficial owner? 5,500,000 (L) 1.70%
B A A
Ms. LIU Interest of controlled corporations? 10,616,800 (L) 3.30%
Elpoen ANElA e
Crown International Corp. Limited Beneficial owner? 40,000,000 (L) 12.50%
(“CIC”)
ERBREEER AR EmEa A
([EEEEE])
Topper Alliance Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 40,000,000 (L) 12.50%
(“Topper Alliance”)
EE 2 e
Mr. DONG Feng (“Mr. DONG") Interest of controlled corporations® 40,000,000 (L) 12.50%
BlLE((ERE]) ANElA £
China Huarong Asset Management Interest of controlled corporations® 100,949,100 (L) 31.70%
Co., Ltd.
FREREEEEROAERAT TYEEE 2 R
Redstone Association Limited Beneficial owner® 68,698,239 (L) 21.61%
EmEEAS
So Good Limited Partnership Fund Beneficial owner® 25,500,000 (L) 8.02%
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Notes:

5

46

CLC beneficially owned 60,949,100 Shares, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CLF, which is in turn wholly-owned by CIF, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Redstone.

Eternal Glory beneficially owned 5,116,800 Shares. Rising Century
beneficially owned 5,500,000 Shares and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Eternal Glory, which in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms.
LIU, Therefore, Eternal Glory was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Rising Century, and Mr. LI and Ms. LIU was deemed to be interested in
Shares held by each of Rising Century and Eternal Glory.

CIC beneficially owned 40,000,000 Shares and is wholly-owned by Topper
Alliance. Topper Alliance is solely owned by Mr. DONG and Topper Alliance
and Mr. DONG is deemed to be interest in the Shares owned by CIC.

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. on 29 June 2020, Fresh Idea Ventures Limited (“FIV")
held security interest in 100,949,100 underlying Shares and FIV is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Linewear Assets Limited (“Linewear Assets”). Linewear
Assets is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong International Financial
Holdings Limited (“HIFH”). HIFH is owned as to 51% by Camellia Pacific
Investment Holding Limited (“CPIH"). CPIH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Huarong International Holdings Limited (“CHIH”). CHIH is held as to
1.80% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. (“HZIM"), as
to 13.36% by Huarong Industrial Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“HIIM”)
and as to 84.84% by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“CHAM").
Each of HZIM and HIIM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHAM. Accordingly,
Linewear Assets, HIFH, CPIH, CHIH, HZIM, HIIM and CHAM are deemed to
be interested in the underlying Shares held by FIV by virtue of the provisions
of the SFO.

Redstone Association Limited beneficially owned 68,698,239 shares and is
wholly owned by Ms. Lau Tian Feng.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

6. So Good Limited Partnership Fund beneficially owned 25,500,000 shares
and is owned 50% by Ms. Wang Yaman and 50% by Ms. Zhang Siyao.

7. “L" represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.
8. The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at 31 March 2025 (i.e. 317,961,000 Shares).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) at the AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to

the success of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms

of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
Directors, including the INEDs, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides research,
development, other technological support or services to the Group,
the Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 17,150,000 Shares, representing 10% of
the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme (including both exercised or outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being
(the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of share options in excess
of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant must be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting of the Company with such grantee
and his/her close associates abstaining from voting.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

48

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
shall be a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence from the offer date, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the
Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not
be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one
or more board lots of the Shares on the offer date, which must be a
business day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date.

The life of the Share Option Scheme is until the tenth anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the date on
which the Share Option Scheme is terminated by resolution of the
Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Current Year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2025 are
being disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Such
transactions, insofar as they constitute:

(@) compensations paid to Directors, are connected transactions
which are fully exempt from the disclosure requirements under
Rule 14A.95 of the Listing Rules; and

(b)  compensations paid to members of the senior management of the
Company, are not connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix C2 of
the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will be available on our website within five months after the end of
the financial year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events subsequent to the year and up to the
date of approval of this report which had materially affected the Group’s
operating and financial performance.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of
the Current Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares during the Current Year and up to
the date of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Effect from 26 March 2024, CCTH CPA Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the Current Year have been

audited by CCTH CPA Limited. A resolution will be proposed to the AGM
to re-appoint CCTH CPA Limited, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wei Zhenming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BOARD STATEMENT

Introduction and Approach to Environmental, Social
and Governance

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), is pleased to present the
environmental, social and governance report of the Group (the “Report”).
The Report summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
initiatives, plans and performance of the Group, and demonstrates its
commitment to sustainable development.

The Group provides a wide range of services to cater for the needs of
customers in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), including (i)
property investment; (ii) property development; (iii) hotel operation; (iv)
financial consultancy service; (v) comprehensive healthcare business;
and (vi) premium spirits trading. Other than financial performance,
environmental protection is also a key focus of the Group, and thus the
Group actively play our role as corporate citizen to fulfill our environmental
protection responsibility. The Group fully understands the importance of
protecting the Earth, the precious planet, and prioritising environmental
and social responsibilities. As a result, in formulating the Group’s business
strategies, identifying different potential acquisitions and investments,
and fulfilling our business objectives, our considerations in ESG are
integrated into our day-to-day operations, in order to operate the Group in
a sustainable and responsible way.

The Group believes that environmental protection, low carbon, resource
conservation and sustainable development are the key trends in society.
In order to pursue a successful and sustainable business model in the key
trends, the Group recognises the importance of integrating ESG aspects
into its risk management system and has taken corresponding measures
in its daily operation and governance perspective. In addition, to promote
carbon neutrality and respond to stakeholders’ expectations on the Group
and issues concerning ESG, the Group has set environment-related
targets, which will be disclosed in the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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ESG Governance Structure

The Board is fully responsible for the Group’s ESG strategies, policies
and reports. It also monitors and manages ESG affairs. The Board
is responsible for formulating the Group’s ESG targets, priorities and
policies. Meanwhile, the Board ensures the effectiveness of the ESG
risk management and internal control systems. Under the assistance
of the designated personnel, the Board regularly discusses and reviews
the Group’s ESG affairs, including but not limited to risks, opportunities,
performance, targets and indicators.

The Group has appointed some designated personnel (the “Designated
Personnel”) from core members of different core departments to manage
related ESG issues. The duties of the Designated Personnel include, but
are not limited to, assisting the Board in collecting and analysing relevant
information on the Group’s ESG aspects, preparing ESG reports, identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks, assessing the effectiveness of
internal control mechanisms, organising and conducting materiality
assessment, and formulating and implementing the Group’s ESG-related
strategies, frameworks and policies. The Designated Personnel also
examine and evaluate the Group’s performance in different aspects,
such as environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibility in the ESG areas. The Designated Personnel periodically
report relevant information to the Board.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

REPORTING SCOPE

Based on the materiality principle and taking into account the core
business and major sources of revenue of the Group, the management
of the Group discussed and determined the reporting scope of the
Report, which has been approved by the Board. The Report primarily
covers the Group’s offices in the PRC and Hong Kong as the Group’s
principal activities are office-based operations. During the Current Year,
the Shenzhen operation has expanded. Unless specified otherwise, the
information of the Group’s key performance indicators (“KPIs”) in the
ESG areas are collected through the operation control mechanisms of the
Group and its subsidiaries. The Group will continue to assess the major
ESG aspects of different businesses to determine whether they need to be
included in the Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken
by the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Current
Year”).

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
based on the reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Materiality: The Group has identified and analysed material ESG issues
through materiality assessment during the Current Year, and made the
identified material ESG issues the focus of the Report. The materiality of
the issues has been reviewed and confirmed by the Board. For further
details, please refer to the two sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: Information regarding the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation references and sources of key conversion
factors used for KPIs are stated wherever appropriate.

Balance: The Report aims to disclose data in an objective way, which aims
to provide stakeholders with a balance overview of the Group’s overall ESG
performance.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, the Group will follow the same
disclosure and statistical methodology in the last year for meaningful
comparisons. If there are any changes that may affect comparisons with
previous reports, the Group will add explanatory notes to the corresponding
content of the Report describing the changes of information in the scope
of reporting and calculation methods.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices is set
out the Corporate Governance Report of the Company’s annual report for
the Current Year.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises that the success of our business is closely related
to the support of our key stakeholders, and the Group therefore values
the feedback from our key stakeholders on the business and ESG-related
issues of the Group. The Group believes that listening to the opinions of
stakeholders is constructive for an objective and comprehensive evaluation
of our ESG performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The following table summarises the Group’s key stakeholders and various
communication channels and their concerns and expectations on the

Group.

Stakeholders
&

Communication channels
BERE

RE dERELSRES@

T%WL$EIm£KﬂmHﬁ%AmEﬁ
BHARMPISANEENEDT N HE

Concerns and expectations

Shareholders and investors

PEREREE

Customers

P

Employees

(=351

° Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings
BRERBFRGREMBRRAS

° Financial reports

I mE

° Group website and e-mail
EEHEERER

° Results announcements
E SN i

° Customer support hotline and e-mail
B IR EE
° Meetings
S
= %
° Telephone/e mail contact
s EEHE

° Customer activities

EPEE

° Employee performance appraisal
BTHEMEZ

° Intranet and e-mail
MEDAERE M BED

° Mid-year/year-end performance
appraisal meeting
Frh ERKRBATEER

o Face to face talks
.—'AEA*J\

° E-mail contact
B

BERHE
° Compliance operation
BREE
° Return on investment
KA R
o Corporate governance
TEER
° Information disclosure and transparency
BB ERAE

° Protection of rights and interests and
fair treatment of shareholders

RIEA R R AT HFRER

° Stable relationship
REBIFR

° Information transparency
BAEAE

° Integrity
S

° Business ethics

BFRER

° Protection of employees’ rights and
interests
RIE(E B

° Working environment
TERE

° Career development opportunities
SEERKE

o Remuneration and benefits
oMt

° Health and safety
fEREZ 2
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE-HERE

Stakeholders
B0E

3/
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Communication channels
BERE

Concerns and expectations

Suppliers and partners
HIEERMEIERN

Regulators and government
authorities

EERBMBT#E

Communities, non-
governmental organisations
and media

M - SFERATHERE R AR

In formulating operational strategies and the ESG measures, the Group
takes into account the stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve
the Group’s performance through mutual cooperation, with a view to

° Business meetings, e-mail and
telephone
B g®E  BENER

° Review and assessment
FZER L

° Regular meetings
TEHe®

o Procurement and tender meetings
RERES

° Opinion survey
ERAE

° Instant messaging software
BB et

° Compliance advisor
B AR

° Financial reports
I mE

o Telephone/e-mail contact
B EEHE

o Information disclosure
BRMEE

° ESG reports
R g REBRE

° Press releases/announcements
HER A

° Results announcements

BN

delivering greater value for the society.
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BERHE

° Long-term cooperation
REIAERE

° Honest cooperation
HHEEE

° Fairness and openness
NSNS

° Information resources sharing
BBERAEE

o Risk reduction
P B

° Compliance with regulations
BFER

° Tax payment as required
ARG

° Promoting regional economic
development and employment

R R AR LR

° Giving back to society
Efran-

° Environmental protection
IRIBIRE

o Social welfare
HERA

o Health and safety
fEEEZ S
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees of the Group’s respective major
functions have participated in the preparation of the Report to assist the
Group in reviewing its operations and identifying relevant ESG issues, and
assess the importance of related issues to its business and stakeholders.
The Group believes that the business performance, overall situation of
the industry and other factors in each year will have different impact on
stakeholders, and thus may affect their expectations and demands on
different issues. Therefore, in order to better understand stakeholders’
views and expectations on the Group’s ESG performance, the Group strives
to adopt a systematic approach in conducting the materiality assessment.

With reference to business development strategies and industry practices,
the Group’s management and employees have identified the ESG issues
that have a significant impact on stakeholders and the development of
the Group’s business. The Group compiled a questionnaire and invited
stakeholders related to the Group to rank the importance of various
ESG issues to themselves and their impact on the Group’s sustainable
development. The Group has analysed and ranked material topics based
on the survey results. The survey results for material assessment will be
reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the management, and will
be disclosed in the Report. The following table summarises the level of
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materiality of the Group on different ESG issues: RE e kEREEALMEERRT
Material Issues
BEXEE

High Medium Low

= B &®
Employment practices Energy consumption o Emissions control
TERER BEIRERE Bensaz
Employees’ health and safety Environmental impact ° Water consumption
BERRHETE management KERERE
Service quality and standards RIBFEER e Supply chain management
BR7% M A Corporate social responsibility HpEsREE
Prevention of child and forced rEHERL e Waste management
labour Employee development and BT R
FrlEE T Roghlss T training e  Climate change
Anti-corruption B B &R AR RIREt
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CONTACT US

The Group welcomes and values stakeholders’ feedback to our ESG
approach and performance, which will help the Group continuously
improve our sustainability performance. If you have any suggestions or
opinions, questions or comments, please feel free to contact the Group at:

Address: Room 2707, 27th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2121 0988

E-mail: info@crown727.com

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2024/2025
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE #HERERTFT@

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIB

The Group attaches importance to the balance between business
development and environmental protection, and pays attention to
the harmonious development of humans and nature. The Group
is committed to playing an important role to protect the Earth
and natural resources and upholding high level of environmental
standards to strictly comply with applicable laws and regulations
during the operation of the business. During the Current Year, the
Group complied with the environmental regulatory requirements
applicable to the places in which it operates. The Group has adopted
policies on pollution prevention, protection of natural resources and
compliance with environmental laws and regulations. The Group has
also established internal environmental management guidelines and
implemented carbon reduction measures to reduce the consumption
of resources such as electricity, fuel and water.

A1. Emissions

The Group has established an environmental protection
accountability system and actively implemented environmental
measures against pollution during daily operation. The
Group’s senior management and office executives supervise
the implementation of the above measures and related
environmental protection policies. The Group expects all
departments to give their best to implement its environmental
policies and ensure all operational processes are in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations under the Group’s strict
supervision and guidance. The Designated Personnel will
continue to review the Group’s environmental policies and
practices and report to the management as appropriate, with
recommendations if necessary.
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During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that would
have a significant impact on the Group, including, but not
limited to, the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (Fp &
AR FEMBIRIFRE L), the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC (1 A R HAMEIK)S2EFTE7E), the
Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution (AP & A R EK A B AR5 2678 7%), the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste (42 2E A R A0 & 82 RE 4175 RIRIENAE)
and the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (225855 2 & 5 171)
of Hong Kong.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

Exhaust gas emissions generated from business operations
of the Group mainly include nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur
oxides (SO,) and particulate matter (PM). The main exhaust
gas emissions generated from the Group’s operations are from
petrol consumed by vehicles. In respect of such sources of
emissions, the Group has actively taken a series of emission
reduction measures to reduce the adverse impact of emissions
on the environment and the risk of illnesses caused by air
pollution in the society. These measures include, but are
not limited to, performing regular vehicle inspections and
maintenance to improve vehicle efficiency, encouraging the
use of public transportation for business travel, and using
electronic means of communication such as video conference
to reduce the frequency of business trips.

During the Current Year, the Group’s exhaust gas emissions!
performance was as follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Type of exhaust gas Unit 20252 2024
BERER B “E-hRF? —T_OF
Nitrogen oxides (NO)) kg 25.36 2.99
AEALHNO)) N
Sulphur oxides (SO,) kg 0.08 0.05
mat(so) /N
Particulate matter (PM) kg 2.30 0.22
FERLH)(PM) NI
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Notes:

1. The calculation of exhaust gas emissions is based on “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

2. The uptick in exhaust gas levels was associated with rising
vehicle emissions over the course of the Current Year.

GHG Emissions

The Group’s GHG emissions are mainly generated from
direct GHG emissions resulted from combustion of petrol in
vehicles (Scope 1), energy indirect GHG emissions resulted
from purchased electricity (Scope 2), and other indirect
GHG emissions resulted from paper disposal and business
air travel (Scope 3). In order to reduce GHG emissions from
the Group’s operation, the Group has set a target to gradually
reduce its intensity of GHG emissions (tCO, equivalent/number
of employees) generated by the year ending 31 March 2028
(“FY2028") by 5%, using 31 March 2023 (“FY2023") as the
baseline year. To this end, the Group has implemented the
following measures to reduce direct GHG emissions resulted
from combustion of petrol in vehicles:

° Plan routes in advance before using vehicles to optimise
petrol consumption;

° Turn off engines for idling vehicles to reduce petrol
consumption;

° Conduct regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to
enhance vehicle efficiency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE - %ié&’* SRS @)

During the Current Year, the Group’s intensity of GHG
emissions (tCO, equivalent/number of employees) increased
by approximately 14% as compared to the year ended 31
March 2023 (the “Previous Year”).

The Group’s GHG emissions performance was as follows:

RAFE - AEERREREY
MERE (B _S{CREE BEA
BEBEE-_T-_=F=A=1+—
BLEFE(LEFEDEMTH
14% -

AEBEREERBHMKRRWT ¢

Indicator® Unit 2025 2024
BE By e —EF
Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions tCO equivalent 14.49 9.58
HE——BHERRERBEN “E(tIRES
Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions tCO equivalent 25.32¢ 18.24
#HE_— - RAERERBYEK —EftiREE
Scope 3 — Other indirect GHG emissions tCO equivalent 6.04 6.24
HE= AR REREBYN “E(tiRE=E
Total GHG emissions tCO equivalent 45.84 34.06
RERBEIRES —AfiEE
Intensity® tCO2 equivalent/number of

employees 1.76 1.55
mES “E(tIREE
Intensity® tCO2 equivalent/HK$ million

revenue 0.41 0.19
mEe “E(tIREE

H&Zﬁ?’i
Notes: T
3. GHG emission data is presented in terms of CO, equivalent, 3. RAEREEMAHDE=S

with reference to, including, but not limited to, The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, the 2019 Baseline
Emission Factor of China Regional Power Grid for Emission
Reduction Projects published by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the PRC, the HK Electric Investments
Sustainability Report 2021 published by the HK Electric, the
global warming potential values in the Fifth Assessment Report
and 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories Volume 2 Energy issued by the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change, and How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued
by the Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

4. The increase in Scope 2 emissions (energy indirect greenhouse
gas emissions) is related to the expansion of Shenzhen
company this Current Year.

o As at 31 March 2025, the total number of employees of the
Group (including executive Directors) was 26 (as at 31 March
2024: 22). These data are also used to calculate other intensity
data.

6. For the Current Year and the Previous Year, the Group’s
revenue was approximately HK$111 million. These data are
also used to calculate other intensity data.

Sewage Discharge

The Group does not consume a significant volume of water
in its business activities, and therefore the Group’s business
activities do not generate a large amount of sewage discharge.
As the sewage generated by the Group is discharged into the
public sewerage system, the amount of sewage discharge is
considered as the water consumption. The amount of water
consumption and corresponding water-saving initiatives will be
described under “Water Consumption” in aspect A2.

Waste Management

The Group also generates waste during its operation process.
To minimise the impact on the environment caused by waste,
the Group has strictly complied with the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste (P ZE A KRB E R EYSRRENA)E) and the
Directory of National Hazardous Wastes (% /&% BE 4 4 $%)
of the PRC and the Waste Disposal Ordinance (B& 5z & 1541)
of Hong Kong and other laws and regulations, continuously
implementing a variety of waste management and emission
reduction measures. In order to reduce wastes from the
Group’s operation, the Group has set a target to gradually
reduce its intensity of waste generated by the FY2028
(tons/number of employees) by 5%, using 31 March 2023
(“FY2023") as the baseline year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - %ig};l /I:l #&m (&)

Hazardous Waste

Due to the Group’s business nature, during the Current
Year, the Group did not generate hazardous waste during its
business operations. Nevertheless, the Group has established
guidelines for the management and disposal of hazardous
waste in accordance with the laws and regulations of the
local government. If any hazardous waste is generated, it
will be clearly labelled and stored at a designated location as
required, and a qualified environmental unit or collector will be
engaged to collect and deliver such waste to the designated
location for disposal.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group did not generate non-hazardous waste during its
business operations. Apart from continuing to implement the
existing waste reduction measures, the Group will also strive to
explore the use of different measures to enhance the recycling
rate and reduce waste generation.

The Group employs a number of measures to reduce waste,
such as different recycling methods, to reduce the amount
of waste generated in its daily operation. These measures
include, but are not limited to, encouraging employees to
use double-sided printing, suggesting the use of electronic
information systems for material sharing and distribution of
internal administrative documents, encouraging employees
to use proper domestic waste treatment methods, requiring
employees to dispose of domestic waste to the designated
collection containers or places in accordance with the
specified location and time, and prohibiting employees from
dumping or stacking domestic waste arbitrarily.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE #HERERTFT@

A2. Use of Resources

Electricity consumption in the offices is the major source of
the Group’s indirect GHG emission. Therefore, the Group
sets out several comprehensive guidelines and measures
in relation to energy saving to our employees with an aim to
minimise the GHG emissions from electricity consumption.
Adhering to the philosophy of conservation, high efficiency,
reasonable utilisation of resources and prevention of wastage
of resources, the Group actively promotes green office and
enhances employees’ awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection.

Energy Consumption

The major energy consumptions of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption and petrol consumption
for transportation. To reduce the energy consumption from
the Group’s business operation, the Group has set the target
to gradually reduce the energy consumptions intensity
(MWh/number of employees) by 5%, using 31 March 2023
(“FY2023") as the baseline year by FY2028. To achieve
this target, the Group fully integrates the concept of energy
saving and emission reduction into its daily operation and
encourages its employees to avoid wastage and make good use
of resources. During the Current Year, the Group implemented
energy saving and emission reduction measures including,
but not limited to, maintaining an indoor temperature at an
optimal level of 25°C in the offices, cleaning the air conditioner
and ventilation system regularly, installing LED lighting system
in the offices, encouraging employees to use natural light and
turn off all equipment when not in use, and putting notices
and signs emphasising the importance of energy saving in the
offices. Through the adoption of the above measures and the
posting of energy saving slogans, the Group has instilled the
awareness of energy saving and environmental protection into
the work and life of every employee and raised the awareness
of energy saving among staff.
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During the Current Year, the Group’s energy consumption

intensity (MWh/number of employees) increased by

approximately 24% as compared to the Previous Year due to

the increase in our business activities.

The Group’s total energy consumption performance was as

follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE  #HERERTRFT@®

RAFE - HREREEZMN
AEERRERERE KRE,/
BEAB)BEFEIEMT A

24%

REBENRREREERRWT

Type of energy’ Unit 2025 2024

B REE By —E-RHEF ZEZEF

Direct energy consumption®

HEERERES

o Petrol MWh 52.79 34.89
b KBS

Indirect energy consumption kg

P AR AR

° Electricity MWh 40.57 28.88
EP) R

Total energy consumption MWh 93.36 63.77

SERERES JK LB

Intensity MWh/number of employees 3.59 2.90

mE JERE,BE AH

Intensity MWh/HK$ million revenue 0.841 0.348

BE KER B E8A TS

Note: et

7. The calculation method of energy consumption data is based 7. BRBEREEENETERZENR

on the “Energy Statistics Manual” published by the International BB 8E R B AT i 2 CBEIREK
Energy Agency. Due to the optimised data processing, the BFMIETHIE - AR EUREIE
relevant data has been disclosed by type since the Previous REmENL - HESER EF

Year. ERRIZERE -

BHEREERERIE T B R AF
[EFT RN EE SRS B 1L ANPTEL -

8. The increase in direct energy consumption was due to the 8.
higher number of vehicles used in the current year.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2024/2025




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Water Consumption

The Group considers water to be one of the most precious
resources on Earth. Apart from water for domestic use in the
offices and regular fire drills, the Group does not require any
water for its daily operations. To reduce water consumption
from the Group’s business operation, the Group has set
the target to gradually reduce the use of water intensity
(m3/number of employees) by 5%, using 31 March 2023
(“FY2023") as the baseline year by FY2028. To achieve this
target, the Group controls the frequency of water consumption
and encourages our employees to conserve water. The Group
will continue to step up relevant publicity in the workplace
to raise employees’ awareness of water conservation in the
future. During the Current Year, there was no issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose due to the geographical location of
the Group’s operation and business nature.

During the Current Year, the Group’s water intensity (m3/
number of employees) decreased by approximately 12% as
compared to the Previous Year.
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The Group’s water consumption performance was as follows: AEBEMAKRIROT -

Water consumption Unit 2025 2024
Ak By —E-hF —E_E
Total water consumption m3 250.00 241.00
BRKE SR

Intensity m3/number of employees 9.62 10.95
BE SR EEAE

Intensity m3/HK$ million revenue 2.25 1.31
BE SR BES TR

Use of Packaging Materials BEYHBIEH

Due to the Group’s business nature, during the Current Year,
the Group’s daily operations did not involve the use of a
significant amount of packaging materials.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE -t ERERRET @

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources A3. RIERRAEIR
Environmental Impact Management REZEEE
Although the Group’s operations do not involve serious BEARENZEEREL NP R
pollution, as part of our ongoing commitment to corporate BESE - BERHMEMER
social responsibility, the Group recognises the importance of AWFEASE  AEEEHIAN
reducing the potential negative environmental impact of our BEGLEHRENETEEY
business operations. The Group strives to reduce our potential BoEEMN XEEBBHEAL
impact on the environment by adopting industry best practices RO RAERBEREREUER
related to reducing the consumption of natural resources REBENTERERTHR 8N
and implementing effective environmental management. BEAEEHRENETZE -
The Group regularly assesses the environmental risks of AEETHTGHEBNIRER
its operations, takes precautionary measures to reduce B BREUTE PR fE b LA PR KB FE R
potential risks and ensures compliance with relevant laws and w0 MR ETHBAREER - 7
regulations, and is also committed to achieving sustainable BOIREBERUBERE  AHRE
development and creating long-term value for the community LR EaIEREER -
and stakeholders.

A4. Climate Change Ad. RIRE1L

To respond to climate change, many countries around the
world adopted more aggressive policies and measures. To
be in line with the nation’s goal of “carbon peak by 2030
and carbon neutralisation by 2060” and sustainable key
trends, the Group actively incorporates climate change into
risk management and development considerations and
enhances the Group’s mitigation and adaptability to potential
climate change impacts. To better cope with the potential
risk and opportunities of climate change, the Group carried
out the identification, assessment, and analysis of climate-
related risks, identified the climate-related risks that have a
material impact on the Company’s business and operations
and assessed the impact of each risk on its own finances, the
results of the relevant work are as follows:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Physical Risks

Increasing severity and frequency of extreme weather events,
such as floods arising from super typhoons and rainstorms,
may cause damage to the Group’s properties, which results in
the impairment of assets and increases the maintenance costs,
and may have an impact on the personal safety of employees.
In addition, these extreme weather events also may influence
the stability of the power supply and lead to power shortages,
thereby affecting the Group’s operation. In response to these
potential risks, the Group has formulated the extreme weather
contingency plan, including the allocation of manpower,
arrangement for emergency measures, sequence and timing
of business resumption, etc., to reduce the impact of extreme
weather events. The Group also informs its employees in
advance regarding the arrangement in case of bad weather.

Transition Risks

To achieve the goal of carbon neutrality, the Group expects
that the government will strengthen environmental regulation
and disclosure requirements on climate-related matters. The
Group therefore will face more stringent regulatory compliance
requirements, resulting in operation costs increased. If the
Group fails to meet the policies and regulatory requirements,
the Group will face regulatory risks from the regulatory
authorities. It also damages the Group’s reputation and
impacts investors’ confidence in the Group. To respond to
these potential risks, the Group will continue to pay attention
to the latest government policies and relevant requirements,
consult regulatory opinions for operation, reduce carbon
emissions from the operation through various measures, and
make an immediate response for the changed policies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE  #HERERTRFT@®

B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment Practices

The Group considers our employees are the core for the Group
to maintain our competitive advantage and the most important
asset for our operations and development. The Group aims to
provide an ideal workplace for each of our employees, allowing
them to enjoy equal opportunity, harmony, continuous training,
and promising career opportunities so as to drive employees to
work hard and achieve the Group’s short-term and long-term
business objectives and goals. The Group insists on a people-
oriented approach that respects and protects the legitimate
rights and interests of each employee, regulates labour and
employment management, protects the occupational health
and safety of employees, safeguards their vital interests,
stimulate their motivation and creativity, and strives to create
harmonious labour relations. The Group has also developed
the Employee Handbook (& T F ) to regulate recruitment,
promotion, discipline, working hours, leaves and other welfare.

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, leaves, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other treatment and welfare
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including,
but not limited to, the Labor Law of the PRC (F 2 A R 470
Bl 44 &3%), the Labor Contract Law of the PRC (R 2E A R HF0
B4 &) & [E)%) and the Employment Ordinance (1B & 1&41) of
Hong Kong.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total of 26 employees
(as at 31 March 2024: 22) including executive directors.
The breakdown of employees by gender, age group, type of
employment, and region was as follows:

By Gender
BRI & D
15 r 14
12 12
10
10 F
| I
O J
2025 2024
ZE-RFE T _NF
B Male
Flt
Female
pegia

By Type of Employment

N-E-_RE=/A=
EEAHLFHERE(AZ
F= HE+*E:2%)

TTESE - ARMR -

E%ﬁ%M&ﬂEME\

T

By Age Group
RERARE D

20

16
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5 | 5 5 5
] I 3
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2025 2024
—g-HF —FoMF
W Ator below 30
30655 T
31-50
31E505%

At or above 51
51553 LA~

By Region
®riE & 5
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10 F 9
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30
26
22
20 }
10 F
0 0
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ZE-FE —FF

B Full-time employees
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Temporary/part-time employees
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRI -HERES

/2

B O #& A (&)

In addition, during the Current Year, the total number of

employee turnover was O (the Previous year: 6), representing

a turnover rate® of approximately 0% (the Previous year:

27.91%). The breakdown of employee turnover rates by

EZEL

RAFENREBRKREA

EAOA(LEFE :6A) » MKE
1049 B80%( EFE : 2791%) °
BUWR > FEARIFHEAES

gender, age group, and region was as follows: MREDMHIAT -
2025 2024
ZEBC-RF —F_F
Number of Number of
turnover Turnover turnover Turnover
employees rate’® employees rate!©
BRET A B MKE BEER A R0
By gender EERES
Male B 0 0% 5 39%
Female it 0 0% 12%
By age group RERER B D
At or below 30 30BREA T 0 0% 1 20%
31-50 31E505% 0 0% 4 30%
At or above 51 51 e A £ 0 0% 1 33%
By region RitEE S
The PRC H 0 0% 2 12%
Hong Kong B 0 0% 4 80%
Notes: i
9.  The overall employee turnover rate was calculated by dividing 0. BREERAXDEANREH

the number of employees leaving employment during the
reporting period by the average number of employees (average
number of employees at the start and at the end of the
reporting period).

10.  The employee turnover rate of each category was calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
specified category during the reporting period by the average
number of employees (average of number of employees at the
start and at the end of the reporting period) in the specified

category.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employees’ Rights and Welfare

The Group endeavours to provide employees with fair and
competitive remuneration and welfare and determines
employee remuneration in accordance with industry practice
and individual performance. The Group conducts regular
review of its employee benefits and adjusts such benefits
according to the changes in external remuneration market
and internal actual situation to ensure that they are in line
with current market standards. The Group pays premiums for
social insurances of employees including basic endowment
insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, and maternity insurance as
well as housing provident fund in accordance with national
and local laws and regulations to ensure employees are
covered by social insurance. Also, the Group provides benefits
such as allowances, benefits in kind, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, and participation of eligible employees
in share option schemes, in an effort to retain talents and to
ensure that employees’ compensation, working hours and
leaves are determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities, experience, qualifications and performance.

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong to protect
the legitimate rights and interests of the labour force, respects
the rights of employees to rest and leave, and regulates the
working hours of employees and their entitlement to various
rest periods and holidays. The Group has implemented a
paid leave system for employees in accordance with relevant
provisions in the Employee Handbook. The Group has
also established management practices to strengthen the
regulation of contracts, remuneration and benefits, and to
implement and monitor the Group’s labour policies to protect
the interests of employees. The Group also pays overtime
pay for the labour that exceeds statutory working hours in
accordance with national laws and regulations. Any overtime
work arrangements must be negotiated between the Group
and employees and must be voluntary for the employees. The
relevant remuneration must be paid in accordance with the
law.

BE #AE2kKELSHRE @

ESEFIFIZEF
AEEF NI REERHATFEA
BHEFINHFMIER - WK
TREREREBEARRETRE
BHM - AEBTEHRYREEFTE
EITOE - SR TFINEBF BT 5
BN RABERBERAER
BB NERTEENMHHR
%o REBIRBBEZR M) AF
NOER - REEBEMELRERE -
ERER K% 16 4£5%
ek kERFAES - BERE
BEEXHERERE - WINKE
bRt EEER - BEYAE
BRERR BIBTEAKEEER
BESHEBRESEFFEUR
NBEANT » WHEREEBNH
& ITERHERERHH2EERE
FEMIEEME - KB BABK
RRKETE -

AEBEBRBRRBHELEENNE
BMERKERNER - NERE
SEESEED  BEREMNK
B RAERN - WAREREE R
THREEREZENSHKRER
A EREIRORER) o AR EIRR(E
BFMOAEERT - BEitES
HERREGIE o AEEIRGIR]E
BHOE - MREHEERE - ZFHE R
wBARE  FERERAKE
MSETHEK  REEREFR - A
SETRRBEZOER ARSI
A TE T4 B ] O 85 B S A< R B
TERM - E NP6 7R
EASERERHANIEE SR
JRAIT#ETT 18R MRBN 24 B IR
PISAS e

ERRREEBRAF 73
2024/2025%



EnvNonrnentaL Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

To meet the Group’s development, the Group ensures that the
recruitment, promotion, and dismissal process only emphasis
on the qualifications, experience, and merits of applicants
and employees, and strictly prohibits any discrimination on
the grounds of gender, colour, race, age, and religion. To
ensure fairness, the recruitment process includes centralising
the candidate selection process by the human resources
department for Hong Kong recruitment and the general
manager for the PRC recruitment, standardising the interview
assessments, and undergoing a strict vetting process for
the different positions offered. The Group attaches great
importance to equal opportunity and transparent promotions.
To increase the personal quality and competence of the
employees and to mobilise the initiative and motivation of all
employees, the Group strives to create a fair, just, and open
competition mechanism that recognises the value of the
employees through assessment and reduces brain drain by
giving them equal opportunities to compete.

Equal Opportunities

The Group is dedicated to providing equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and maintaining an inclusive and
collaborative workplace culture. Regardless of race, gender,
colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition, religion,
physical fitness, and nationality, etc., the Group allows
employees to enjoy a fair treatment at all stages of recruitment,
training, and promotion, in an effort to bring professionals
with different backgrounds to join the Group. The Group is
committed to maintaining a diverse workforce and prohibiting
unfair treatment of any kind.

1B5E - BHRAEE
REEAEENZERTE A&
EEEE  BSARBERETRE
REZEEFRFAREEHNER -
EERRINGE - WEARZE I A HE
MR- BE - Bk FRERY
EMASIENER - BERA
o RERFEIERANERS
(%%%%%ﬁ%ﬂ%@%ﬁﬁ¢
BIREE T 5 ) PR IRPRRIR T -
NE—ZEFZERARKER - Uk
BTEBA#ETEREESRET -
AEEGAERTEREREF
FRE - ARAEBBEAZREMN
BEOANEFRD A2 BEENE
@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁilﬁﬂM*
ANF - RIE - AHANFEFES
Lﬂ%ﬁ*%m EMEE I
REGRTEETERFORS -
W/AﬁWﬁ%°

e
AEBBHEREN S T ERE
TERE  WHRBEFHENT
EBH XA - AEETEEE
B MR EE - FE - RES
g REMG RY - SEE
O 25 R 2 R A — 4R
8 REALAE %mﬂ%ﬂ
SEMBETALTHS HUE
ﬁmﬁ$ﬁ%%mﬁﬁMA$%
5 AREARSRBEIST
fb - TR AT AT -

Crown International Corporation Limited
74 Annual Report 2024/2025




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE #HERERTFT@

B2. Employees Health and Safety B2. REREHEZE

The safety and health of employees are a top priority for
the Group. Despite the low occupational safety and health
risks faced by the Group’s office staff, the Group maintains
a meticulous approach to safety education and training and
has therefore developed the Safety Management System
(Z & EIEHIE) to clearly communicate the Group’s safety
objectives. The Group is pursuing “two eliminations and one
control”, i.e. elimination of accidents of a larger scale and
above and control of sporadic accidents, to raise employees’
safety awareness and prevent the occurrence of accidents.
The Group has complied with all laws and regulations relating
to the provision of a safe working environment and the
protection of employees from occupational hazards including,
but not limited to, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases (FZE A F2 L1 BB 2 75
[f745%), the Fire Protection Law of the PRC (12 A R F1E
SEFA %) and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (8%
¥ 22 RfE2FED) of Hong Kong.

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with applicable national laws and
regulations relating to health and safety that would have a
significant impact on the Group, nor did it record any work-
related accidents resulting in fatalities and any lost workdays
due to work-related injuries during last three years (including
the Current Year).

AEEKEENLZERERER
B - BEAKRERAZEETH
HrBEZIRERRRE
AEBDABRRKER2HE RIE
TR — A TENEE - I
Am$IE TCL2ERFEIAS
MEEARENLEZEET BN
BRI AR - —fEd ] - B4R
BARAEZHARESNTE
BUEH - IREFAREER2ZE
B B ENELE - AREDE
SRR EIR R 2 TRRE AR
BREMCBELBZAMNE
BIER - BRETRIPEA
RAMBEBERBE) - (PE
ARKMBERTE) A R BB
XL 2 REFED) -

RAFEE » NEBE W EEREM
HAKBEKREATENERR
2R AR ERBEZORE AR
ZEREBREH TRBEE=F
(BHREAFE)TEFFSTMAT
EREEMEESL T EINEMIA
MAEAETEMBRR TIERE -

ERRREEBRAF 75
2024/2025%



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRI -HERES
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B3. Employees Development and Training

The Group believes that the development of the potential of
the employees is closely related to the Group’s growth. As
a result, it is one of the Group’s missions to place a strong
emphasis on the career development of its employees and to
provide them with extensive training, so that their development
and the growth of the enterprise can build on each other and
be mutually reinforcing. The Group provides a broad platform
for the growth and development of its employees through
the formulation of the Staff Training System (& L 3I#|E)
to standardise and personalise training, as well as through
regular evaluation and stimulate employees’ motivation and
enthusiasm. To this end, the Group has established training-
related policies to regulate the management of training
of employees. The management will regularly review the
effectiveness of different training plans to help improve the
efficiency of the Group’s training system. By providing a wide
range of training programs to its employees, the Group actively
assists them in developing their long-term career plans.

Training Programmes

Based on employees’ career development plans and needs,
the Group offers internal training in accounting and finance to
the corresponding production unit, to enhance the professional
knowledge and expertise of employees. Moreover, the Group
strongly encourages employees to attend any necessary
external training courses, workshops, and seminars, including
job- related skills training, professional skills training, and
managerial training. The Group encourages the employees to
attend external training courses and participate in professional
lectures by providing substantial support to them, such as
providing financial support and encouraging employees to take
any necessary leave for studying.

During the Current Year, the Group has not organised any
training. While resource constraints delayed employee training
initiatives in the past, we recognize its importance. Going
forward, developing our people remains a top priority.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the national and local
employment laws and regulations and prohibits any child
labour and forced labour in its business operations. During the
Current Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to child labour
and forced labour that would have a significant impact on the
Group including, but not limited to, the Labour Law of the PRC
(R #E ARFEMBELE) %) and the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour (Z|-# A ZE TR F) and the Employment Ordinance
(1 1% 1& 13 ) of Hong Kong. The Group has also formulated
the Management System for Child and Minor Labour
(BETERKFIEEHE) to clearly inform employees that
child labour is strictly prohibited in the Group. The Group
requires the personnel management department to conduct
rigorous checks on documents and information such as
identity cards, medical certificates, academic certificates,
and household and to ensure that all documents provided
are original during recruitment. In case of doubt about
the validity of documents such as age, applicants must be
required to provide proof from the public security police
station where the applicant’s household is located or contact
the public security police station to confirm the validity of the
documents. Employment will be offered only after the age and
other information are confirmed to be correct. In addition,
the Group conducts regular audits and inspections to prevent
any child labour and forced labour in its operations. In the
meantime, the Group’s employees work overtime voluntarily
only when necessary. If any child labour is found to have
been wrongly employed, the Group will immediately settle
their wages and take remedies, including the immediate
cessation of their work, provision of medical examination and,
if necessary, treatment and escorting them home or picking
them up by a guardian. Any department or individual, if
found to be responsible for the injury, disability, or death of a
child labourer, shall be imposed administrative penalties by
the labour security department at or above the district level.
If a crime is constituted, the criminal responsibility shall be
pursued by judicial authorities. Moreover, the Group will not
tolerate any negative acts such as verbal abuse, corporal
punishment, physical abuse, oppression, sexual harassment,
etc., against its employees for any reason.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE  #HERERTRFT@®

B5. Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are crucial to the businesses and operations of the
Group. The Group aims at developing on mutual trust and
stable cooperation with its suppliers. The Group adheres to
international best practices and ensures fair and unbiased
tender processes are maintained when dealing with suppliers.
The Group has established a supplier selection mechanism
with a number of stringent selection criteria and strictly
adheres to the core principles of honesty, integrity, fairness,
justice and transparency.

During the Current Year, the Weihai Property was still under
construction. Although the construction work is provided
by a contractor which was engaged previously, the senior
management took serious care in the background and
commitments to the society and environment of that contractor
by enquiring and reading its ESG-related information and
reports. The project personnel regularly monitored the
progress of the construction conducted by the contractor, and
held regular meetings with the contractor to review whether
the contractor has used any toxic and hazardous materials or
caused significant pollution to the environment. The Group
also emphasised the importance of waste management and
advocated waste reduction, reuse and recycling during the
construction by the contractor, to ensure that alignment with
the Group’s objectives and direction.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Suppliers’ Environmental and Social Risks

The Group has established relevant procurement procedures to
handle the procurement of goods and services from suppliers.
Supplier selection is performed by the corresponding operation
departments and office managers. In supplier selection, the
Group conducts thorough due diligence and vetting process by
taking into account of a number of selection criteria including,
but not limited to, pricing, quality of products, company
background, past experience and reputation, supply capacity,
any non- compliance with local law and regulations on existing
business, as well as qualifications attained and financial status
and other factors. Proper internal control measures are also
in place in the Group’s procurement system to ensure each
supplier engagement is approved by the appropriate level of
management.

In addition, the Group oversees the social and environmental
performance of its suppliers and monitors the quality of goods
and services provided by them on a regular basis. Where
the Group discovers that they did not meet the standard,
or their goods and services provided were environmental
unfriendly and energy inefficient compared to their peers in
the market, they will be required to make corrective actions in
a timely manner. Otherwise, they may be suspended from any
business relationships with the Group.

The Group also expects its major suppliers to understand
the importance of environmental protection and social
responsibility and put health and safety as one of their
core principles in doing businesses. In order to further
improve the selection and management of suppliers, the
Group has formulated the Green Procurement Code of
Conduct (A = IRFE R & E) to standardise the environmental
management controls of suppliers to ensure they can meet the
requirements of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

oo 4=z 1 & TG =5
RIE - B RERBRET @)
Fair and Open Tender RFERABEEE
The Group’s tender process is conducted under open, fair and REEBERBREER2B(FEA

B6.

equitable conditions in strict compliance with the Law of the
PRC on Tendering and Bidding (fF 2 A R EFERIZRIZIR)
and other relevant regulations. No discriminatory treatment
will be given to any supplier, and employees and other
individuals with an interest in the suppliers will not be allowed
to participate in the relevant tender activities. The Group is
also concerned about the integrity of its suppliers and partners
and has zero tolerance for bribery and corruption, and strictly
prohibits suppliers and partners from obtaining procurement
contracts or partnerships through any form of transfer of
benefits.

During the Current Year, the Group has one supplier in the
Group’s supplier chain.

Product Responsibility

During the Current Year, the Group strictly complied with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety of products and
services, advertising, labelling and privacy matters as well as
remedies including, but not limited to, the Advertising Law of
the PRC (AR HEMBEIEEX) and the Patent Law of the
PRC (P2 A R FIFE EFJE) and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (A & #}(FLFZ) f51) of Hong Kong. During the
Current Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to health and
safety of products and services, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters that would have a material impact on the
Group. Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the number
of recalls for safety and health reasons and the relevant recall
procedures were not applicable to the Group.

Service Quality and Standards

The quality of the Group’s services is of paramount importance
in maintaining a long-term mutually beneficial relationship with
its customers. The Group therefore has developed relevant
systems for handling customer feedback to standardise the
process of dealing with enquiries, quotations and complaints,
so that it ensures that each customer’s feedback is recorded,
handled and responded to in a professional and prompt
manner. During the Current Year, the Group did not receive
any major written complaints about its products and services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Promoting and Labelling

In order to ensure that the promotion of the Group’s services
conforms to the actual situation of the service, the Group
strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations on
advertising and marketing such as the Advertising Law of the
PRC (2 A R £ AME E &)%) and the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance ( & & &t B9 & B ) of Hong Kong. The Group is
committed to ensuring that all advertising contents are clear
and authentic. The use of false and misleading product
descriptions in advertisements is strictly prohibited. The Group
also requires all publicity content, such as external image
display, event publicity, marketing publicity, to be produced
and published only after approval, so as to avoid any form of
false publicity and ensure its authenticity and accuracy.

Protection of Customer Privacy

To further reinforce the privacy management in protection of
the enterprise property and customers’ safety and interests,
the Group has stipulated a series of stringent and standardised
personal information privacy and security policies for
protecting the Group’s properties and classified information
(including the personal privacy of employees and customers);
and strictly prohibits any abuse of personal information and
illegal profiteering acts. Only authorised personnel of the
Group can access information systems with customer and
employee data, and employees are strictly prohibited to
disclose the company’s information without authorisation,
including the identity and background of tenants and contract
terms. Without prior written consent of customers, the Group
shall not mention the matters agreed between the Group and
the customers in any promotional materials or advertisements
for any purpose other than the agreement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE  #HERERTRFT@®

Intellectual Property Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the Group does
not rely on the use of a large number of patents or intellectual
property rights. However, the Group’s daily operations may
involve the use of the intellectual property rights owned
by suppliers or business partners. The Group respects the
intellectual property rights of partners while protecting its
own intellectual property rights from infringement. Meantime,
the Group enters into confidentiality agreements with its
employees, clearly specifying the scope, means and liability
for breach of confidentiality, so as to prevent leakage of
confidential information due to staff turnover and maximise the
security of data for customers and suppliers.

B7. Anti-corruption

The Group recognises the crucial importance of anti-corruption
to a corporate culture of integrity and to the interests of all
stakeholders. To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business
and working environment, the Group stresses great importance
of anti-corruption measures to every stakeholder including
employees, suppliers, customers and bankers. Any form
of corruption including, but not limited to, fraud, extortion,
bribery and money laundering is strictly prohibited. The Group
regularly remind its employees not to accept gifts or rebates
from suppliers or other stakeholders under any circumstances,
and not to receive or accept any gratification from any person,
companies or institutions with whom the Group has business
dealings. The relevant guidelines are also clearly listed in the
Employee Handbook. The Group will continue with and be
committed to business integrity, adhering to the business
ethics of honesty, integrity, fairness, mutual benefit, and
customer first.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance case in relation to the prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group including, but not limited to, the Criminal Law of the
PRC (H ZE A K kA B Fi J%), Anti-Money Laundering Law
of the PRC (R # A R H MBI [ % #87%) and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC (FP2E A R HAE & T IEE %)
and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ([ - B B {5 51]) of
Hong Kong. Furthermore, these was no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the Current Year.

In order to prevent any misconduct such as bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering during the operation of the
Group, the Group has circulated guidelines relating to anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing to the
Board and its employees with the aim to familiarise them with
their corresponding role and responsibility to promote anti-
corruption and business ethics.

Whistle-blowing System

The Group has set up a whistle-blowing hotline and an
independent inspection team to collect related whistle-blowing
information and set up a sound supervision and restraint
mechanism to prevent bribery, extortion, fraud, money
laundering and other misconducts. Under this whistle-blowing
system, all employees are allowed to report to the internal
control employees anonymously any suspected delinquency,
corruption, bribery and other misconducts within the Group.
The internal control employees will process the reports
promptly, fairly and confidentially. Besides, the whistle-blowing
system also ensures that whistle-blowers will not be treated
unfairly because of the reports, including, but not limited to,
unreasonable dismissal and unwarranted disciplinary actions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE  #HERERTRFT@®

B8. Community Investment

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group adheres to the belief of “taking from society,
and giving back to society”. Apart from maintaining sound
business development, the Group also actively takes
initiatives in community investments, especially focusing on
environmental protection and poverty alleviation. Besides, the
Group encourages employees to take part in work-life balance
activities and community services, including various culture
events, community volunteering, employee outings, and
supporting charitable organisations. The Group hopes to foster
employees’ sense of social responsibility, thus encouraging
them to actively participate in social activities for public good to
make greater contributions to the society. The Group believes
that the participation in activities that contribute to the society
can improve employees’ civic awareness and help them
establish correct values. Due to past resource constraints, the
Group prioritized core operations over social programs. Going
forward, as our financial position allows, we aim to focus more
on social welfare initiatives.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING

CODE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

SR ESRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BE #AE2kKELSHRE @

BXATHCGRE - HEREBT
ETFRDABRSIR

Chapters/Statement
i1

Governance Framework

EVRIER
Reporting Principles
e SRR A
Reporting Boundary
e

Board Statement — ESG Governance Structure
EXgBHA - RR HeRELELRERE
Reporting Framework

HEESR

Reporting Scope

HEHE

Emissions — GHG Emissions
e — B E REEHER

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
BE - —REER
BRENEE Ei A =6, 89
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : Bk
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—MRIREE BREERIORERBEN - KR THONFET B RESEEVMNES W

Z£H -

(@) B Kk

(b)) BEIFHETABERZENEBERE KRN

BEH -
KPI'Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions — Exhaust

Gas Emissions
BERH) —
&SR HERR

FASRAEREIRALL BRI ) & B ARRABE AR -

ERRREEBRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - %ig};l /I:l #&m (&)

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
B - —REER

BRRENIERZ i =6 B

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions Emissions —

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production GHG Emissions
volume, per facility).

FASEAERIEIRAL2 BER(BED REREZ(BE2)RERBHHRE (AN E) R(ER)E B —

E(nABESEf - BIERETHE) ° oz R BN
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emissions — Waste
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Management
BARAEIEIRAL3 EXEEREMHEEUEAE) M(WER)BE (MAGEEE - HER —
BHRHETE) BEEMELRR
KPIAl.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emissions — Waste
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Management
R AERIEIRALA EABREREZEVAE(UANAE) R(WER)BE(WMAGEEEN - HER —
HREHERTE) o REEME R
KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Emissions — GHG
Emissions
B A IEIRALD PRI L EVHENE B IR R RIETE L BRI 25 - e —
REREE TN
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and Emissions — Waste
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Management
B RIEIZALG R RIEEENEEEREYNTE - RIBRAET AR B R R AERE R —
L B IR P ERER B 225K © BEEYERE
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Subject Areas,

General Disclosures

and KPlIs
EBE- - —REER
BRENIEE

Description

i)

=

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BE #AE2kKELSHRE @

/A ¥

Section/Statement

BE B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHEA2 : ERERA

General Disclosure

— R

KPI'A2.1

FRSHAEIRIRAZ 1

KPI'A2.2

BASHAERIEIRAZ.2

KPI'A2.3

BASHAERIEIRAZ.3

KPI'A2.4

FASRAEIEIRA2.4

KPI'A2.5

FABEAENIRIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BRERER(BIEERR - KMEMERME)HEEK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or
oil) in total (kWh in'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

REAE DB E R/ MEER(NE - |aoh) B (AT ETFREET
BIREE(WMAGES SN - BERMEAE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
BFEKERRE(WMAGES BN - BIERMTE) °

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

WA S BERE AR B R R AR 5L B IRPT R S8R -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HASKEGE R KR LB AR - ARATET S B RKE B R R AED
B B ARPRERER A PR o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

S mPTRERMANEE (UM E) R (INER) BEEEMHE -

Use of Resources

BREM

Use of Resources
— Energy
Consumption

BIRER—
BEIRERE

Use of Resources —
Water Consumption

BIRER—
IKERERE

Use of Resources
— Energy
Consumption

BIRER—
BUIRERE

Use of Resources —
Water Consumption

BIRER—
IKRERERE

N/A — explained
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - %ig};l /I:l #&m (&)

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
BHE- - —REER
BRERES EipAL EH, 89

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
[BEA3 : RERKXARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment The Environment and
and natural resources. Natural Resources
— Environmental

Impact
Management
— MR WK EIT ALIRIE R RA B REK E RN EBER RIBERAAER—

RIEZEER

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and The Environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Natural Resources
— Environmental
Impact
Management
R AE RHEIRAS.] HEBEHHRBERARERNEAZERERKNERERTENT BERRAER-
B o REFEER
Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EEA4 : BRI
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Climate Change
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—MRHER BRIREHEERAIEGHBETAEEFENERRGEBREENEE - KIEE (L
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, Climate Change —

and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage Physical Risks,
them. Transition Risks

BASREBUEIR A4l B RAIREEHBEITAEERENEARKEREE - REHTE - RIEEL-EE
Rz - ERE
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Subject Areas,
General Disclosures
and KPIs

[BE - —REER
BRERES

Description

i

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BE #AE2kKELSHRE @

/A ¥

Section/Statement

BE B

Aspect B1: Employment
FEEB1 : 1%

General Disclosure

—RE

KPIB1.1

FASEAEIEEBL1

KPIB1.2
RS AERIEIRB1.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti- discrimination, and

other benefits and welfare.

BEAFR R - BERE - TERE - B FS#E otk X

AR DA B EoAth A5 388 S AR Y

(@ BEE: &

(b) ETFHETABEAZENHEMERLROIHER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or part-
time), age group and geographical region.

BRI RIFER (2 RERE) - FiAR RitREIDHIEEAH -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

RIER - FiARI KRB DHBERRLE -

ERRREEBRAF
2024/2025%
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Employment Practices
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EfRER

39



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - %ig};l /I:l #&m (&)

Subject Areas,

General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
BHE- - —REER

BRERES EipAL EH, 89

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[ETEB2 : REEZ R

General Disclosure Information on: Employees Health
(a) the policies; and and Safety
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

— MR EE ERREZ2 TERERREREERMABENBEN - EBEREEZD
(@) BE: Rk
(b) ETFEHBEITABERTENERERERAN
HYER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three Employees Health
years including the reporting year. and Safety
RS AE REIEB2.1 BE=ZF(BEERFRE)SFATTUHMHABREX - EEREREZS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Employees Health
and Safety
RS A E1RB2.2 ETIEEAIIEAE - EERERHEZE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how Employees Health
they are implemented and monitored. and Safety
BB IEIRB2.3 HAPAER AN B R R 215 - AT REER A - BEREEZS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE #HERERTFT@

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
[BE - —REER
BRERES Ei A 1 1

Aspect B3: Development and Training
FETEB3 : BERIEI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Employees
duties at work. Description of training activities. Development and
Training
— MR EE BERMEERITIERE N AE R AR - HiEsIES - 1B 8 &R MIE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Employees
senior management, middle management). Development and

Training — Training

Programmes
RSB MUIEIEB3.1 RUEFIREERN(INESREERE  +REER)ESNZIEEASL - EBEZERIKEI-

HIRRTE

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Employees
employee category. Development and
Training — Training
Programmes
RS AEIEIRB3.2 RURNRIEEEMNED - BRESTRXIIN TR EE#REKIEI -

IR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE  #HERERTRFT@®

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
BHE- - —REER
BRERES EipAL EH, 89

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fETEB4 : 25 T X8|

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards —
(a) the policies; and Prevention of Child
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant and Forced Labour
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—MRIRER BRI E TRt T BITARER-FILET
(@ BX: & K58 85 T
(b)) EFHTABERZENEBERE KA
BEH -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Labour Standards —
forced labour. Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour
BAR A R E1RBA.1 s IR B fl e e AR R B T KR KIS T - BITHER-fHI-ET
K& ss T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Labour Standards —

Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour

R E IR IZB4.2 A B0 B AR B B EBR A RIS TR A A 25 o BTAR|-FFIEET
Nog 45 T
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Subject Areas,

General Disclosures

B LB R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

f25 3 x
BB E @

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
[BE - —REER
BRERES Ei A 1 1
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : tIEgEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain
Management
—RRARER ERHEBENRE T SRBREEK - HrEsREE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
Management
BB AE IEIRBS. 1 Ritm B D R EE - ppESE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers Supply Chain
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented Management
and monitored.
BB 51RB5.2 AR AREENED - MERTEBEONHEREE - AREH HEEER
HMITRERTE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks Supply Chain
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management
— Suppliers’
Environmental and
Social Risks, Fair
and Open Tender
B 4E N $518EB5.3 A ERE A E R TR AIRIE R g RBAEL - UREEHTR HEEEE
ERTE- HIEEHIRE N
tERk - TR
N:GEGEE
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supply Chain
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored. — Suppliers’
Environmental and
Social Risks
FAR A $E1EB5.4 R E M BRI R E ARRER RGBS - LSBT RE HEEEE -
BHE-e HEBNRE R
g mER

ERRREEBRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - %ig};l /I:l #&m (&)

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
BHE- - —REER
BRERES EipAL EH, 89

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
fEHEB6 : EMEE

General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

—ARBER BHFMRMHERNRBNERERZ S  BE  RERMEBSEURERT EREE
VAR
(@) BE: &k
(b) EFHBEITABERZENERERE IR
BB R} o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and N/A — explained
health reasons.
B AE R E1RB6.1 PENDEREMAHTELZ S EERBAMARKNE DL NER— 2
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they Product Responsibility
are dealt with. — Service Quality
and Standards
RASR A E1RB6.2 BERNE fn MR HIREF BB AR EE T » EmEE—
AR mE RIE%E
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual Product Responsibility
property rights. — Intellectual
Property
Management
RS E N 1E1RB6.3 ot A R ORI AN E v R A RIE A - EmEE—
HBEREE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. N/A — explained
RS A E1EB6.4 H B S 10 E 112 N B mn B Fr o TEA - B e
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they Product Responsibility
are implemented and monitored. — Protection of
Customer Privacy
B A N5 1EB6.5 it E B = ERHMRIE RALBEEE - U RMEBERITRERE - EmEE—
BEFMERE
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Subject Areas,

General Disclosures

and KPlIs
EBE- - —REER
BRENIEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BE #AE2kKELSHRE @

Description

i)

=3

Section/Statement

BE B

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EHEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

KPI B7.1

BASEAE M IE1RBT.1

KPI B7.2

BASEAE M FE1RBT.2

KPIB7.3
RS AEMIEIRBT.3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAYIEERRE - BR - MEFROEBE

(@) BE: &

(b)) BEFHETABEAZENEBERZKAGIRER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBAAHEITASEEESREWEFENE)SFARMENEE RFA
R e

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

ft P e ra it M B RIE R - A RAERRRIT MEER DA ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
fimEE R E TRENRESHE -

ERRREEBRAF
2024/2025%

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption —
Whistle-blowing

System
R&ER—
BRI HIE

Anti-corruption
RES
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - %ig};l /I:l #&m (&)

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
BHE- - —REER
BRERES EipAL EH, 89

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into Investment —
consideration the communities’ interests. Corporate Social

Responsibility

— MR ER BHENHESERTREEMEHRFENBRREER IDHEEEMTEN HEKRE—
MEVER - TrEMEEMR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour Community
needs, health, culture, sport). Investment —

Corporate Social
Responsibility

B A 515881 EIERERE(HE  RREE BIHER BR XXt 8BF)- HEKRE—
TELTERR

KPI B&.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community
Investment —

Corporate Social
Responsibility
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Independent Auditor’s Report

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEEMERLE

TO THE MEMBERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 195, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B Az EEN R E )

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Net realisable value of properties under development for sale

FERBTYETERFE

BREESEE

RRBAFAODREBERMANERAE 5
HANBHE SV BBRERNBEARAEENS
R ZFFHEN MR BREAVHR
REUILHAB RS —GRIE - TSR
ZEFREHERNESR -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ENMEERRETEE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLBRA P EHREWEL6 -

The Group had properties under development for sale amounting to
approximately HK$716,879,000 as at 31 March 2025. These properties
under development for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated at the actual or estimated
selling price less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to
make the sales. Write-down is made if the estimated net realisable value is
less than the carrying amount.

RZZE-AF=A=+—H EXEEFEEETMWEL716879,000
BT » ZEHFERETYEERRETZRFERERHREETER
AR FERERSMEASERMA T IR A REEMFZRAGE o
AT SR FEENREEE - BETHEE -

We identified the estimation of net realisable value of properties under
development for sale as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the properties under development for sale balances and the significant
judgement involved in making the key assumptions in determining the net
realisable value of properties under development for sale.
ARFEERTMELHNEEN UREBEFEEETMERZRF
ENEERIMMFROERALE - RABETFEERTMEN AT
FERR AR ETEE -
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Our procedures in relation to the
management’s assessment of the net realisable
value of properties under development for sale
included:

B EREHFEREPYEOAIZIRF
EEITHEN R P B

° Assessing the appropriateness of
the methodologies applied on the
determination of net realisable value of
properties under development for sale;

o FMEANRBERERERYETERF
BENHERSEE

° Evaluating the reasonableness and
relevance of key inputs and assumptions
used in the determination of net
realisable value of properties under
development for sale; and

e HMARARBEGFERETRMENEERF
ENFERARRKNEGEERIEHA
MRk

° Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our
assessment on the appropriateness of
the methodologies and reasonableness of
the key inputs and assumptions used in
the determination of net realisable value
of properties under development for sale.

o BEEIERMPEMIGRETEE
R ER R BT FERFTERNS
ERBEE  AREZ2EABBMERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charge with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B M A BEN R S )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2024/2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purpose of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the those charge with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide the those charge with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B Az EEN R E )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Shek Man Hei Kimmy

Practising Certificate Number P0O7274

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Ko H At 2 T WK 28 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 B2 —F - AF = H=+—HIF FE

,ﬁ_ = N2
,%T\l/::\ (=R

2025 2024
—E_RE —E N4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FExT FAT
Revenue Wz 5 111,407 183,461
Cost of sales SHEKA (80,298) (136,138)
Gross profit EAH 31,109 47,323
Other gains Hples 6 - 73
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR ZEE 28(c) - (100,852)
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plant and #1% - BiE LR & RE
equipment [gi=Ee e 1,453 =
Reversal of impairment loss on properties under 5 & 2R Y3 RE
development for sale [E51E# (o) 4,193 2,168
Staff costs BEKAK 7 (5,138) (5,075)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment Y% - BREMERETE 14 (1,385) (1,679)
Selling and distribution expense HERDHERY - (2,200)
Other operating expenses Hth&EMx (6,773) (8,258)
Operating profit/(loss) meER N, (BE) 23,459 (68,500)
Finance income BREUA 8 60 127
Finance costs TSR AR 8 (60) (47,389)
Financecosts,met  _MBRAE® T 47262)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETBHRADER,(BE) 9 23,459 (115,762)
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 10 (7,323) (11,438)
Profit/(loss) for theyear  FR@RBR) 0 16136 (127,200
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hib2mE(EHE) W
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to HigngegamoBsEasy
profit or loss: EH
Currency translation differences HERBIRE =T (7,372) (35,940)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of RHEENEB A RERER
subsidiaries VE W 28(c) - 119,955
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income FEREMEE(ER), WS
for the year azE (7,372) 84,015
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year EREmEWE(EE) A% 8,764 (43,185)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LU &5 EERF, (B58) -
Owners of the Company KAREBA 16,136 (126,785)
Non-controlling interests I s - (415)
16,136 (127,200)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) attributable to: UTEHEEZEERN
(B518) 4% -
Owners of the Company VIN/NETL ¥ =N 8,764 (43,581)
Non-controlling interests AR - 396
8,764 (43,185)
(Restated)
(FeE:5)
Basic and diluted earning/(loss) per share ERATRFEEAELEATR
attributable to owners of the Company for EAREEBERR(FE)
the year (expressed in HK cent per share) (AERABWES) 11 7.37 HK cents B4l (70.25 HK cents /#1l)

ERRREEBRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI AR

As at 31 March 2025 R —FE-—AF=H=+—H

2025 2024
—E-RE —EPUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE FHT T
Assets EE
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment E YN 14 195,255 152,171
Deposits e 18 161 435
195,416 152,606
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 37,4717 108,205
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEfhEGRIE - TARERIE 18
Kz 449,045 274,035
Properties under development for sale SEBRRBYE 16 716,879 724,096
Restricted bank balances PR I F FASRITAE R 20 1,291 1,626
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEED 20 110,731 177,587
... 1315423 1,285,549
Totalassets ... ... ®eE®@s ... 151089 1,438,155
Liabilities a8&
Current liabilities REBEME
Other payables and accruals B RIERETAE 21 288,965 494,879
Borrowings ge 22 - 808,726
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 939 1,649
Income tax payable FEFTIS TR 18,447 11,252
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 308,351 1,316,506
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(AfE)FE 1,007,072 (30,957)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 1,202,488 121,649

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

aRa B SR R R

As at 31 March 2025 R —FE - AF=H=+—H

2025 2024
—ZE-REF —T e
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bzt FET FATT
Non-current liabilities FERBARG
Lease liabilities HERE 15 6,079 451
Borrowings fEm 22 797,497 -
Promissory note FHER 23 22,623 -
Deferred tax liability B IBEE 24 1,588 -
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 827,787 . . .451
Net assets BEE 374,701 121,198
Equity P
Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital N 25 2,243,048 1,998,309
Other reserves Hm 26 (1,868,347) (1,877,111)
Total equity RSB 374,701 121,198

The consolidated financial statements on page 103 to 195 were approved

by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2025 and were signed on its behalf:

Mr. Wei Zhenming

FIBEIBEZHGEUBRRN _FT_AHF
ANAZTLREERSME  YHUTAL
REREZFERTF

Mr. Deng Jianguo
BEE L

Executive Director

HITEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #Z=—ZF_-—AF=H=+—HIFZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARRE AN
Non-
Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
Capital reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

N BRfiE ERfE 2B BE FERER BRAR
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(Fr3E25) (Fr3x26) (Fr3E26)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT AT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Balance at 1 April 2024 R-B-MEMA—A

ZiEsh 1,998,309 7,915 (10,710)  (1,874,316) 121,198 - 121,198
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
— Profit for the year ~FREH - - - 16,136 16,136 = 16,136
Other comprehensive loss: Hiv2mEEsE
— Currency translation - BERREES
differences - - (7,372) - (7,372) - (7,372)

Total comprehensive (loss) ~ 2TE(&18)WELE

income - - (7,372) 16,136 8,764 - 8,764
Issue of shares under right ~ {ERRIE T E47RR (D -
issue, net of transaction cost IR HAA
(Note 25) (B3E25) 89,291 - - - 89,291 - 89,291
Issue of shares under REETRTRNR
subscription (Note 25) (P3E25) 155,448 - - - 155,448 155,448
Balance at 31 March 2025 ~ R=—Z-R#f=f
=t+-HBeH&& 2,243,048 1,915 (18,082)  (1,858,180) 374,701 - 374,701
Balance at 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=£NA-AH
_________________________ 2R 198309 7915 (93914 (L74783L) 164779 (126) 163518
Comprehensive loss: 2AEEE:
— Loss for the year -FREE - - = (126,785)  (126,785) (415)  (127,200)
Other comprehensive (loss) ~ E 2 (FE) /3 :
income:
— Currency translation -ERGEEE
differences - - (36,751) - (36,751) 811 (35,940)
~ Release of exchange = ENG
reserve upon disposal of PRl 5
subsidiaries - - 119,955 - 119,955 - 119,955
Total comprehensive income/ 23/ (F18) A%
(loss) - - 83,204 (126,785) (43,581) 3% (43,185)
— Disposal of subsidiaries - HERBAR
(Note 28(c)) (FI5E28(c)) = = = - - 865 865
Balance at 31 March 2024 ~ A=Z-IE=f
=t+-Be&sH 1,998,309 7915 (107100 (1,874316) 121,198 - 121,198

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETMRNER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZ2=—ZFE_-—AF=HA=+—HIFZF

2025 2024
—EB-HE —E N4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE FExT FiEIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETFBHHERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRSBTS R, (BHE) 23,459 (115,762)
Adjustments for: FEEIRR -
Finance costs (other than interest R A(HEAER S
on lease liabilities) BN 8 - 47,238
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 8 60 151
Finance income U AN 8 (60) (127)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment Y - BERERETE 14 1,385 1,679
Gain on early termination of lease AR IEE 2 Was 6 - (73)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZEE 28(c) - 100,852
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plant Y - BB SR 2 B
and equipment =gizte el 14 (1,453) =
Reversal of impairment loss on properties under — #FERZE R Y 2 RE
development for sale E5tE# (A 16 (4,193) (2,168)
Changes in working capital HEESE
Inventories "E 72,441 =
Trade receivables BUE SRR - 14,650
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ E b EU FIE
BNFERES (170,965) 314,312
Trade payables FETE SRR (619) (2,000)
Other payables and accruals HAbfE R RIBRERTAE (236,812) (88,093)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating ReESEE (FTR)Fiigz
activities REFE LRI 270,659
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBZRERE
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances REVSPR I A IRTTAE B 333 63
Interest received BHFE 60 127
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—HWBAF 2R e
MAFER 28(d) 7,253 =
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRARZ
RE M FEE 28(c) = (32,395)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REZTHRE (A2
activities BHEFEEE 7,646 (32,205)

STRREMERA T
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBHERER W@

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #Z=—ZF_-—AF=H=+—HIFZF

2025 2024
—E-REF —EoEF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
BfaE FExT FiBT
Cash flows from financing activities METHCRERE 28(b)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRD 2 FT1S 508 248,716 -
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares ~ ZETRR D BIE R SR (3,977) -
Drawdown of borrowings REEE - 57,500
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (2,000) (114,048)
Interest paid BFE - (125)
Repayment of interest portion of lease liabilities EBEAEBEFEHLY (60) (151)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities  EEHEBEZ RS IH (1,430) (2,156)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities B&EEEFTE, (FiH) 2
_______________________________________________________ ReF®E ... 241249 (58980
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{“#ﬂlz
), EInEEE (67,862) 179,474
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REVZRERREE
BY) 177,587 2,481
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash equivalents 3R &NIREHEBEY 2
BE 3¢ Wz, (E518) 1,006 (4,368)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZBERIRE
=@y 20 110,731 177,587

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property
investment, (ii) property development, (iii) hotel operations, (iv)
trading and developing of premium white spirit and (v) provision
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services,
whilst those of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Room 2707, 27th Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
which is also its principal place of business.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. As at 31 March 2025, the Directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be 1 B0 gl & &= & 12 A%
MBERATA.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
all HKFRS Accounting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS Accounting Standards”)
and the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
which concern the preparation of financial statements.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting new standard and amendments
to existing standards

The following new standard and amendments to existing
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2024

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

has issued a number of amended HKFRS Accounting

Standards that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 FENBHBRZEREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERETHERER ®

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEREE)
(b) Newl/revised HKFRS Accounting Standards (b) EEMHEEGREMZFHE
that have been issued but are not yet effective NEET BB B EERE
FT2ER)
The following new/revised HKFRS Accounting AT Al ge AN & B A = 51K
Standards, potentially relevant to the Group’s accounting RNERE YRR AR
policies and consolidated financial statements, have BB ET BB IS RS %
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not BlestERIE EMmE M AL
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current B  BAEBTRERR
intention is to apply these changes on the date they me AREEBRAEENES
become effective. WENRAHERAZEES -
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in EAUBREED  GEFRIEIIR
Financial Statements® 2185 it
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public BANHEE FLATHELNER
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i
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ABREE
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HKAS 28 between an Investor and its Z10%REE BEREZENAE
Associate or Joint Venture* SREREY  HEZEA
BT
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability* EhaE REAEHEE
EVkva
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2025

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026

& Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2027

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRS Accounting Standards

that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new
HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying forward
many of the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new
requirements to present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation
of information to be disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7.

Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027, with early application permitted. The
application of the new standard is expected to affect
the presentation of the statement of profit or loss and
disclosures in the future financial statements. The
Group is in the process of assessing the detailed impact
of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS
Accounting Standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B R I R )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investees net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2024/2025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where item
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

118

(Continued)
2.5 Fore

(c)

Crown |

ign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

nternational Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2024/2025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 FENBHBRZEREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERETHERER ®

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are depreciated so as to write off their cost net
of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as

follows:

Building 20 years

Furniture and fixtures 3to 5years

Computer, office 3to b years
equipment and machinery

Motor vehicles 5 years

Other properties leased The shorter of asset’s expected
for own use useful lives and lease terms

Leasehold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over
the shorter of their expected useful lives to the Group and the
related lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

120

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
It also includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each of the end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes
in fair values are recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets which are
largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or
groups of assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Leasing

(i) Asalessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not
contain purchase option. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

122

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property, they are carried at fair value.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The Group
accounts for leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried at
depreciated cost. Other than the above right-of-use
assets, the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right- of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Right-of-use assets related to leasehold interests
where the interest in the land is held as inventories
of properties are included in the same line item as
properties under development for sale as that within the
corresponding assets.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9

Leasing (Continued)
(i)  Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

2.10 Inventories

2.11

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value of inventories represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Development cost of
properties comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs
and borrowing costs incurred during the construction period.
Upon completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs of completion.

Properties under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.12 Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) are measured at fair value. Dividend
income are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. For trade
receivables that are not assessed for ECLs individually,
the Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, and lease liabilities, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 2.17.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset
or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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132

2.12 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv) Equity instruments

(v)

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
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213

2.14

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.14 Current and deferred income tax(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely through
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.14 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

GEMBBRRERELE
REXRESFTHEXRER #)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15 #1E

RN 2 B IR 38 1 3 A 2 B4 B
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is BEAATXHETETMEE A
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle EEBRERBARE  BlERE
BEAEFESBCERATER
B  AEETGRARKRLEE
BHEREE -

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present

the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood WEBELZIEEUST  HEER

that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax interest rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage

EREABNBREFTERLE
TRABRREEZ T REME BB 5L
ABEEMBEE 2EME—AA
EBMHERZAEETKN A
R o

BmIRBABEEYAT X
2 REEARBATHERFE
MZANERREFTHEHEERL
REEEFHRZBRETZR
FERRR o B PR R & Mg

ZBEEHRARNEHAX -

of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 FENBHRRZEREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERETHERER @

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.16 Borrowings 216 B
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of ERVEEAFELHNRKRELER
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently RSBRAER - BREBILEH
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the AT E © FTSRIE (IR SHK
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption R)EREOSENEMEZEMNAE
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the BRI ERENE R IE SN g
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid R WA I2EMEFSRA
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as BEWIREN - BIRK S B E R T /Y
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable BHEHRALERNRFER -
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this EHBEAT  ZEAGELEE
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the TR AL - 8B FIFEFERPEL
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or AHEHREEE K FRATLR
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as R AIZERSWERNMLIES
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the NBESRBOENER - WikF
period of the facility to which it relates. R B R & 2R S HAR S o
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the EE N5 AN EBERR - BUE
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled S - (EREEEBERXRP
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a Sk - BERAERES —FH
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to THABEMNEREEESNRED
another party and the consideration paid, including any non- EZ7 - AREEMNEERNIERS
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in BESEENERE  EEZARE
profit or loss as other income or finance costs. RAEMBA KRR -
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group BRIEREBERBEBENEER
has the right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 EEREPRERLTZM@A -
months after the reporting period. BRERg T BARBEE -

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B R I R )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

217

2.18

219

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Employee benefits
(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet

date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2024/2025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the scheme are generally held in separate
trustee- administered funds. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme by the Group and employees are calculated as
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they relate.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
owners after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there
is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 FENBHBRZEREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERETHERER ®)

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 219 EERF (&)
(d) Termination benefits (d) HIEBEF
Termination benefits are payable when employment is BIFRBEARAEEELE
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement BIRNB R4 L E AR FE
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when 5 EEBBFMENGE
it is demonstrably committed to a termination when RIFIRBEEZER - Bl
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the EROZ AR AEES
employment of current employees without possibility of RBEBBABETRIERE
withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than 12 months R HBREEF - RIREH
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to RNigBB T @A E
their present value. MEWIREEIRE -
2.20 Interest income 2.20 FIE YA
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using FLEW AT A B R FISOE R
the effective interest method. R LE AR -
2.21 Government grants 2.21 BURTERY
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable BSEMR A& RREFSWE A
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will REE S E ST AT R R RERR o
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that HEASECEERINMmEI®
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised RAXEENR—HEE R4
as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same RIEEERBBA - HEAEE
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that BEMANMEEBSKBETIERNE
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deferred EMNEEAFRNIEEARER

and recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 FENBHRRZEREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERETHERER @

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.22 Revenue recognition 222 IR
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when RKERFAEHZWERERIR
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at BRI REEEE R P RER
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group HeBRMASEERARRIMZ
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, TEMERBMBEEESHR
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. B TEERRE=FHENZ
A o
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that B S AR TS B 15 4 T A — ER B
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be MRk E—HEEER - BURR
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods BHNIEREBRRE HORER
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance: BT - WMAREEBLBERT
B TIHEME - & BRI
RETHE — RSN
e provides all of the benefits received and consumed o  REEHEUAZE - MER
simultaneously by the customer; Ih A 22 W B I )8 #E A B
Pl
e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls o  AEERBRANAEIE/H
as the Group performs; or BEPERIHERE 5
e does not create an asset with an alternative use to o UWEEAHAEEEENRA
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to BHEE - BARSE A58
payment for performance completed to date. WITHEMNAKBRFTES
BEKEBAIDRIFIE
If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is il & G B AR IS 0P HIAE 1 — R
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the MAER - Alliae RN EEE4
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance B2 ETKRBITROEED
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time HEERR - BR - KEgRER
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service. 1S & o ok AR 75 12 i) 4 A Ber ] B

fER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

GEMBBRRERELE
REXRESFTHEXRER #)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 WiRtER (&)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed
for sale in the ordinary course of business is recognised
when the property is accepted by the customer,
or deemed as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the property
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
were included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under contract liabilities. Contract liabilities will
be accrued on the long-term advances received based
on the length of time between the customer’s payment
and the delivery of property to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.22

2.23

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Sales of healthcare products

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally when the goods are delivered to
and have been accepted.

(c) Comprehensive healthcare planning and
management service income

Service income is recognised over time as the
counterparties simultaneously receive and consume
benefits when the Company performs the management
services.

(d) Sales of premium white spirit

Revenue from sales of premium while spirit is recognised
at the point in time when Group satisfied its performance
obligations upon delivery the goods to the customers.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation
that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs
so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.24

2.25

144

Share-based payment

Where equity settled share options are awarded to employees,
the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken
into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at each reporting date so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is
based on the number of options that eventually vest. Non-
vesting conditions and market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition or where a non-vesting condition is
not satisfied.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.25 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

= e B 7R R MR )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 FENBHBRZEREE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RERETHERER ®)

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.25 Related parties (Continued) 2.25 BT (&)
(b)  (Continued) by (&)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) (@) AT RIEY A L
influence over the entity or is a member of key %T‘ZE BEEATE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent NABZERE(HZE
of the entity). BHEARDEEER

AB o

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (i) ZEBIEMBSE
it is a part, provides key management personnel K {ER X B A B[ X
services to the group or to the group’s parent. EEXAEET AT

REFZEZAER
% o

Close members of the family of a person are those R-—ATHIBRKBKEE

family members who may be expected to influence, or EHEBETR SN - TEH

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the A EZALTHITZALE

entity and include: ZHERARBKE - B

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic () ZBALTHWFLEZRE
partner; B RENS

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (il ZBAAITHEBIR
partner; and BEfENFZ Rk

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) mBATHZBAL
or domestic partner. B BB sk R BE (B Y

REEA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Categories of financial instruments

b T EN AT )

Bt 75 [ By B BB
3.1 €mTEER

2025 2024
—E_RE —E-UFE
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT FETT
Financial assets: TREE :
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AT RN SR EE 121,792 216,353
Financial liabilities: ERBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REE AR SR BE 961,866 1,151,528
Lease liabilities HERE 7,018 2,100

968,884 1,153,628

3.2 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group has
not used any derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk
exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is
carried out by the Executive Committee which identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as credit risk and
liquidity risk.
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e R R R MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

148

(@)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to other
receivables and bank balances. The exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of other receivables, the Group closely
monitors the credit performances and prompt
repayments from the counterparties. The Group has
policies in place to review the recoverability of other
receivables on an ongoing basis and assess the
adequacy of provision for impairment.

In respect of bank balances, the Group has diversified
its exposures into different financial institutions. It has
policies in place to assess the credit standing of the
counterparties and financial institutions before the Group
invests its assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
the Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing
loans that the Group considers appropriate. The Group
monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve which
comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the consolidated statement of
financial position to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months approximate their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Financial risk factors (Continued)

3

b T EN AT )

BRERER @

3.2

B EREEE)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEIEZERE)
Within 1yearor Between1and  Between 2 and More than

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
- ERFEEX -EMF MERE SREE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAr T T T

As at 31 March 2025 R-E-RE=A=t-AH

Financial liabilities included in other 5t AEAt B (4 2R g3t

payables and accruals BE/EHAR 141,746 = = = 141,746
Borrowings o - - 797,497 - 797,497
Promissory note S - - 32,110 = 32,110
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,205 536 1,634 5,979 9,354
142,951 536 831,241 5,979 980,707

As at 31 March 2024 R-B-ME=A=1+-H

Financial liabllities included in -~ 5 AL B Z08 R E:t
other payables and accruals BEzeRARE 342802 = = = 342 802
Borrowings EE 808,726 = = = 808,726
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,708 455 = = 2,163
1,153,236 455 - - 1,153,691
Fair value 3.3 A¥E

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
at the end of each reporting period approximate to their
corresponding fair values.

Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s
equity, which include cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company which comprises
the issued share capital and accumulates losses.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns
for shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and
growth. The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a
balance between higher shareholders’ returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

3.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXBEREE®

3.4 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash
and bank balance. Total capital is calculated as “Equity” as
shown in the consolidated statements of financial position plus
net debt. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are

3.4 EXRERERE)
AEBERBFEKEENEED
FEREEVRE R o s R IVZFE
BHRABERBEAE - FEBS
RERBBERR S RIRITEB
B - BABBIVREAM RN
RETIRE T et | pFE TSR

as follows: E-R-_E-_HFE=-A=+—H
—E-MF=A=+—HmME

EAELENT :
2025 2024
—E_REF —E-UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Net debt HETS 685,475 629,513
Total equity iy L 374,701 121,198
Net debt to equity ratio FEREERNEE R 182.9% 519.4%

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements above, the Group has
made the following judgments that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the financial position date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are disclosed below.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost approximate to their fair values due
to their short-term maturities. Their fair value is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a) Net realisable value of properties under

development for sale and estimated
impairment of construction in progress

Net realisable value of properties under development for
sale

In determining whether write-down should be made to the
Group’s properties under development for sale, and hotel
under construction in progress (“Properties”) the residual
method was adopted as at 31 March 2025 and 2024. Firstly,
the gross development value was assessed. The gross
development value represents the total capital value assuming
the proposed development is completed at the reporting period
at current market prices. The assessed value of the Properties
is the residual value after deducting the estimated gross
development costs (including construction costs, marketing
fees, finance costs and related costs) to be incurred, as well
as the developer’s profit and profit provisions from the gross
development value.

In assessing the gross development value, on the basis
that the Properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the Group’s latest development proposals,
the direct comparison approach was adopted by making
reference to comparable sales evidences which possess the
similar characteristics as available in the relevant market.
As at the 31 March 2025, the gross development value was
arrived at approximately HK$1,190,946,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,105,081,000) (2024: HK$1,783,016,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,645,000,000)). The marketing costs on gross
development value, finance costs and tax fees were taken into
account and excluded from the gross development value.

b T EN AT )

4 EBEAEEHEFTRAE =)

(a)

SERRRE S TREF
ERIER TR EAE

FERZRFPYF 25 FE

RRTERERSHASN S B FEE
BRADMERCRBEE([ZEY
2K AEEERZTRF
FZZTZmF= A=+ —HEMR
BMEE - B FIHEEERE
B - BEREERERIBER
HERREBEIRE T HER
TRMBERNER - ZEWEN
AEEEEEEEEBET R
TEETE M AAR B A (B IR
R - EHEBEA - BB RAE
8K A ) DA B2 35 f2 7 s R )
BEENFIREE -

FHHREREERS  ERZSE
MEBRBEAEESHERFIR
EITRERTER - K2 ZR@T
HHREBRUSBMATLEERE
BMERAEELS L R =T
“HEZRA=1+—8 BSERE
H4941,190,946,00058 7T (18 &
M ARY1,105,081,0007T) (=&
— P94 ¢ 1,783,016,00058 7T (48
BN AR 645,000,0007T)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 EBEAEEHEFTRAE =)

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a) Net realisable value of properties under (a) FEBRPYEZATRRF

development for sale and estimated
impairment of construction in progress
(Continued)

Net realisable value of properties under development for
sale (Continued)

In assessing the outstanding construction costs, the
construction costs, finance costs and profit on construction
costs that will be expended to complete the developments
to reflect the quality of the completed development were
taken into account in the valuation. After excluded the
assumed developer’s profit on site value at approximately
HK$32,331,000 (equivalent to RMB30,000,000) (2024:
HK$208,508,000 (equivalent to RMB192,368,000)). As at
31 March 2024, the assessed value of the properties under
development for sale and the hotel under construction in
progress was arrived at approximately HK$870,782,000
(equivalent to RMB808,000,000) (2024: HK$869,280,000
(equivalent to RMB802,000,000)), which thereby arrived by
gross development value net of the gross development costs
and the developer’s profit. Accordingly, the Group determined
the net realisable value lower than the carrying amounts of
property under development for sale, reversal of impairment
loss of HK$4,193,000 (2024: reversal of impairment loss of
HK$2,168,000) was recognised in the profit and loss for the
year ended 31 March 2025. For the hotel under construction
in progress, reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,453,000
(2024: HK$NIl) was recognised in the profit and loss for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

ERERZIRMETRE®R)

FERRPYF TR BFE (E)

TR R RER AR - HER
EZRTEANTRAZEENE
SRR - ISR AN ROER SRR A
wH URBMEBSEKFMEEE W
BE o MBREBRHFAEEENE
B 3 8 %9 432,331,000 7t (48
M AR #30,000,000T) (=%
—PO4E ¢ 208,508,000 T (I E
M ARM192,368,0007T)) A=
T-_MNE=ZRA=1+—8B FE%
BRAEMERTEREAENTHER
%7 /870,782,000 7T (FHE R A
R ¥ 808,000,000 ) (=& =Y
% 1 869,280,000 7T (FE A
R #802,000,0007T)) * Itk Jhd 42
EREENREEER AN KA
EmAEE - Bt - ANEEEE
ARRFEERGFEEETME
BREE - RIBA518# 24,193,000
BIL(ZZE_UF : BESBEE
[B12,168,0008 L) EREE=-ZT
“HEZAZ=+—HULEFENAE
mRER - EREBEENRAES
185 @ 1,453,000 T (—E =

F:TELEREBE-T-RF
A=t HLFEMBETE

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of inventories

The Group has operational procedures are in place to monitor
this risk as the majority of the Group’s working capital is
devoted to inventories. The Group reviews its inventory ageing
on a periodical basis and compares the carrying values of the
aged inventories with their respective net realisable values.
The management estimates the net realisable values for such
inventories based on primarily on the latest sales price and
current market condition. The purpose is to ascertain whether
allowance is required to be made in the financial statements
for any obsolete and slow-moving inventories. In addition,
physical counts are carried out on a periodical basis in order
to determine whether allowance is needed in respect of any
missing, obsolete or defective inventories identified.

Principal versus agent consideration (Principal)

The Group is considered as a principal for its contracts with
customers relating to trading of premium white spirit as the
Group obtained the control over the spirit before passing on
to customers taking into consideration and the Group has the
right to direct the use and to obtain all the economic benefits
of the white spirit before passing on to customers.

b T EN AT )

4 EBEAEEHEFTRAE =)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

W z2 2 70 BB E
AEBERTEHR T ELEREA(H]
HITER)REZARHBER B E
BN BB D EER - M%F AR
BERDHATESRAREXBHEK
MO 2 BERAEMEHRE - AHBEEE
BIRZ AR ER D 2 RN » AMITESHRE
Z AR IS E R 8 2 R AERER D =
ERMERE  MEER  BEERE -
BEABRE S MNERLEHARERS
EIEARRE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the
executive directors, for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business component and for their review of the
performance of that component. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive directors are
principally engaged in property investment, property development,
hotel operations, trading and developing of premium white spirit and
provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and management

services.

(@) Analysis of revenue by category (@) RERID M2
2025 2024
—E_REF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Sales of premium white spirit recognised at ~ AEEZER 2 BEEHEHE

point in time 111,407 183,461

RZE-_RAF=A=+—H" %
REAEBREAOBRTETE

As at 31 March 2025, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

154

obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
HK$136,450,000 (2024: HK$141,706,000). The amount
represented revenue expected to be recognised in the future
from pre-completion sales contracts for properties under
development. This amount includes the interest component
of pre-completion properties sales contracts under which
the Group obtains significant financing benefits from the
customers. The Group will recognise the expected revenue in
future when or as the work is completed or, in the case of the
properties under development for sales, when the properties
are assigned to the customers which is expected to occur over
the next 12 to 24 months (2024: next 12 to 24 months).
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Annual Report 2024/2025

SR 5 (B & #2585 136,450,000
BT (ZZ =04 : 141,706,000
BT o SRR RBIETE AR RTBEAE B
EhENTITANEE A DGR
REOWA - ZE&BEEIEETIA
MEHESNOF LD - %3
PREAKENRTFEBZEX
s les - NREBERKE IR
BRI BERERRE - Y
REESEETRWEMNS - AED
¥NBRTFEPIF(FEATHERK
FTZH=FHEA(ZEZNEF
REE+ =B =+EAR)) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Summarised details of the business segments are as
follows:

(i)  the property investment segment engages in investment
of properties;

(i) the property development segment engages in property
development and sales of properties in Weihai city
(“Weihai”);

(iii)  the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and
food and beverage business in Weihai;

(iv) trading and developing of premium white spirit segment
engages in trading and developing of premium white
spirit;

(v) the comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services segment engages in the provision
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services to the healthcare operators and sales of
healthcare products; and

(vi) the unallocated segment comprises operations other
than those specified in (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above
and includes that of the corporate office.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to property, plant and
equipment. Segment assets consist primarily of inventories,
properties under development for sale, property, plant and
equipment and receivables. Segment liabilities comprise
deferred income tax liabilities, operating liabilities and
borrowings. Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly represent
assets and liabilities used by the corporate office, which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment,
which include items such as cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

r e SRR MR @

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 Wa&koaH&ER#®)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEBER(E)
The directors of the Company assess the performance of RANTEEEI SO L (A
the operating segments based on a measure of segment 4 A E 2L e h T T TR AN ) SR
results, which represent, operating profit or loss less central OB SSREI o HE —F — F4E
administrative costs. The segment results, depreciation on B-E-—E— A=+ —QH &
property, plant and equipment, loss on disposal of investment o ORARE S SRS T S
JJna 7] )R
properties, reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) ; . N - .
on property, plant and equipment and properties under ’;T Zi%gffﬁﬂ%igm;
= =) &) TE N

development for sale and capital expenditure based on

reportable segments for the years ended 31 March 2025 and ﬂﬁ’\zﬁﬁgﬂ’%%@/(ﬁ@%
2024 are as follows: B) FEERTUWERERFAX
N
Comprehensive

Trading and healthcare
developing o planning and

Property Property Hotel premium  management

investment ~ development operations white spirit services  Unallocated Total
BERE  AEEXH

NERE NEER EEEE EERER EBRE  ASEER @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

For the year ended 31 March 2025 HZ-Z-AF=A=1+-H

LEE

Segment revenue: AHlE
Revenue from external customers  RESMFZRE 2z - - - 111,407 - - 111,407
Segment results PEREE - 3,320 1,212 29,017 (3,335) (6,755) 23,459
Finance income BBIRA 60
Finance costs BB (60)
Profit before income tax BREAEHATRR] 23459
Income tax expense FERR% (1,323)
Profit for the year ERET 16,136
Other segment information: 2o HEH
Depreciation on property, plantand 1% - BiE Rk E

equipment - - - (411) - (974) (1,385)
Reversal of impairment losson 1%+ B AR ERERS

property, plant and equipment 1B - - 1,453 - - - 1,453

Reversal of impairment losson — FERERNEREERE
properties under development for %[

sale - 4193 - - - - 4193
Additions to NE
- Property, plantand equipment  —¥1% « BER&E - - - 45,956 - - 45,956

Crown International Corporation Limited
].56 Annual Report 2024/2025



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

Wk oEER =)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEBER(E)
Comprehensive
Trading and healthcare
developingof  planning and
Property Property Hotel premium  management
investment  development operations white Spirit services  Unallocated Total
BERE  ARERE
NERE NEER BEEE  BHRER ERRE  KoRBEE @5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZ-F-ME=A=+-H
LEE
Segment revenue: PHlE
Revenue from external customers  RESMIRE 7 iz - = = 183461 = = 183,461
Segment results PHEE (62) 1,004 (256) 44223 (2,635) (110,774) (68,500)
Finance income FBBA 127
Finance costs SRR (47389)
Loss before income tax BEEHAISE (115,762)
Income tax expense FEREY (11,438)
Loss for the year EREE (127,200)
Other segment information: 2o HEs
Depreciation on property, plantand 9% - BERREITE
equipment (62) (26) (6) (390) (1,195) (1,679)
Reversal of impairmentlosson ~~ HEXERYERESE
properties under development [
for sale - 2,168 - - - - 2,168
Additions to NE
- Property, plantand equipment  —#1% - BER#E - = = 885 = = 885
ERRMEEEFRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W=Kko#HER @

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)

2 customers (2024: 1) contributed more than 10% revenue of

DERER ()
MEEF(ZF_NF : —R)A

the Group. REBEFRFBB10%KE °
2025 2024
—E_RE —EOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FET
Customer A (from trading and developing of BFPACGKREEBEHBEZE S M
premium white spirit segment) BRDE) 17,177 154,497
Customer B (from trading and developing of EFBRBEEHRBZE S K
premium white spirit segment) BRERDE) 94,230 NotePf 7+

Note: Customer B did not contribute over 10% of total revenue of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W=k oEER @

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEHBERE)
The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable RZFE-_RAFR-_ZT-_NF=H
segments as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as follows: =+—H  RAKRESBEID 2
DEHEERBENT :

Comprehensive

Trading and healthcare

developing of  planning and

Property Property Hotel premium  management
investment  development operations  white spirit services  Unallocated Total

BERE ARERY
NERE NERE BEEE EERER EBRHE AROEER @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT FAT

At 31 March 2025 R-B-REZA=+-H
Segment assets AHBE - 1,073,348 228,432 97,638 - 690 1,400,108
Cashand cash equivalents  BERAEEEY - - = 106,456 137 4,138 110,731
Total assets BEAE - 1,073,348 228,432 204,094 137 4828 1,510,839
Segment liabilities AHARE - 855,882 187,876 60,466 331 31,583 1,136,138
Total liabilities BEAH - 855,882 187,876 60,466 331 31,583 1,136,138
At 31 March 2024 R-B-ME=A=+-H

Segment assets PEEE = 920,477 193,502 144,941 = 1648 1,260,568
Cashand cash equivalents ~ B&RBREEEN = = = 168,647 558 8382 177 587
Total assets BEEAE - 920,477 193,502 313,588 558 10,030 1,438,155
Segment liabilities AHARE = 1,063,152 231,180 21,491 - 11,134 1,316,957
Total liabilities BEAH - 1,003,152 231,180 21,491 - 11,134 1,316,957

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B R I R )

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024 and non-current assets other than financial instruments
as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 based on geographical area
are as follows:

5 WRBERDIBER )

(b)

DEER ()

AEERPRERBBLELEER o
AREFHE-_ZT_HAER_-ZF
THFE=A=+—HIFEZRM
EHDZWEUNRR_E-_AF
T -mMFE=ZA=+—HKi
EE D ZERBDEE(SRITAR
E PN

2025 2024
—E_RF —T D uF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue &=

PRC F 111,407 183,461

Non-current assets EREBEE
Hong Kong BB 337 1,297
PRC H 194,918 150,874
195,255 152,171

Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised
based on where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

OTHER GAINS 6 Hfttz=
2025 2024
—E-FE —E 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER T
Gain on early termination of lease IRATAR P E 2 e - 73
STAFF COSTS 7 EEHX
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TXREZEESZEENE  BES
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)). BEE e (FiE13) °
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-UFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Salaries and other short-term employee e REMEEESER
benefits 4,804 4,864
Contributions to defined contribution plans  FZEHEFRET B4 334 211
5,138 5,075
All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s ARBEPEARLME ([ PE ) HOF
Republic of China (“PRC”) who are PRC citizens participate in BRARINFIBEEBRTREARZEEHSZ
employee social security plans enacted in the PRC, including BN EHIT 2 BB 2 RERE - %
pension, medical and other welfare benefits, which are organised SR BB ERBUTEE 2 R EIRAR
and administrated by the government authorities. According to the he  BEREMET - LEHEBR
relevant regulations, the Group contributes on a monthly basis based Bl AEBEGAREREFEETA
on certain percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject LA 8 T Rt & 1@ I R VB 5k
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and social welfare (MERBETLR) o MEHEIEL 2 #3K
authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as incurred. REERIHWEER -

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

8 FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 B FE
2025 2024
—E_REF —EpUF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt FETT
Interest expense: FIBFHZ

Interest on entrusted loan EAERZHE - (47,113)

Interest on other loan EMERZFE - (125)

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) HEafdE ez a(fM:E15) (60) (151)
Finance costs 21/ 95N (60) (47,389)
Interest income: FBUA -

Bank interest income RITHBHA 60 127
Finance income B UR A 60 127
Finance costs, net B ISR A F 5 = (47,262)

9 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9 BRATEBBIADEF (EE)
Profit/(loss) before income tax for the year is arrived at after AERHRATERANET (BB ) &Nk
charging: THIFIREER

2025 2024

—E_REF —E-UFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHETT

Auditor’s remuneration ZERRT N & 1,200 1,200
Inventories recognised as expense WRBHI 2 FE 80,298 118,932

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B B 7 R I R )

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FRBBIRAX
The amount of income tax expense to the consolidated statement of FAEEAWNERAMESHRY 28R -
comprehensive income represents:
2025 2024
—E-RHEF —TMmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT
Current tax BIHERRL IR
PRC F
— Current Year —KRFEE 7,323 11,438
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs from REEBRATEFRAEH,(E8) 2fHE
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average MIZFEA NI E R R ZEE 2 INEF
tax rate applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as HREAE IEmMEA N T ER
follows:
2025 2024
—E-RHE —Tog
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrETISRLATER, (E518) 23,459 (115,762)

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the respective

REARESAEEERRTERZ
EMHERGE 2 HIE

jurisdictions 6,704 (19,867)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S 2 BIA R & 1,629 30,758
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue SR 2 IR E (1,412) (396)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEE 2 HIBTE 402 943
Income tax expense S i 7,323 11,438
The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2024: BEANNEGH 2 BRARERI6LSN(ZF
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for ZPO4F 1 16.5%) ° EE)J’A$'E B F A
the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2024: ERERRPEFN(ZEZWFE - T) - RN
Nil). Provision for China corporate income tax is calculated based on FRWERBEBREHAELEE - P
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2024: 25%) on the assessable income PEMERBEGENIERErIESESHHE

of each of the Group’s PRC entities.

BZERBMMAEER LK% (ZF
ZPOEE : 25%)ETE o

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

11 EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE 1 BREF (&HA)

(a) Basic earning/(loss) per ordinary share is calculated by (a) BRELTBERZERAF(EE)
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the TAFEAXRRGIEERFE ARG
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares AR (EE)BRADBEITE @R
in issue during the year. 2 IETFHEETE -

2025 2024
—E-RE =1
Earning/(loss) for the purpose of basic earnings per ~ AR ESRELBRFZEF/(FE)
share
Earning/(loss) for the year attributable to owners AREEBAEEEREAF (BE)
of the Company 16,136 (126,785)
Weighted average numbers of ordinary shares ARFAEERELRER A
for the purpose of basic earning/(loss) per (BB 2 S BRMEFLIH
share B
Number of shares
(in thousand)
5 E B
(TR)
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZTNF
(Restated)
(&%)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the R EBREREF],/(EiE)Z
purpose of basic earning/(loss) per share L@ ETIEE 218,886 180,485
Bonus elements arising from the rights shares and the MR A HHRR D FREE AR W4T
consolidated shares has been adjusted on the determination FIRK D EREE RS NEFTE
of weighted average number of shares, as if they were effective BEHARE  BUER_—_T—=
at the beginning of 1 April 2023. Further details are set out in FORA-—BRBRECER - BH
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. FHBEN RS W TSR FE25 -
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above RS EE EXgERERLE#
for both basic and diluted earnings per share. SRR ME TR EAER -

(b) No diluted loss per share for 2025 was presented as there (b) RZZE-_hFHEZGREE

were no potential ordinary shares in issue for 2025. BE REAR_ZT_AFIE

BERTEELTEK -

12 DIVIDEND 12 RE
The Board do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year EEETERREHE-_ZS-_AF=H
ended 31 March 2025 (2024 Nil). =E+—HUEFEZRBERE(ZEZ

FE)o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS R R Y R

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is

set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2025

13 EEZEARAEZE

LN

@ EBEKBESTHRAEZ#ME
BREZERERTRABZHMH

BE-—E-HF=A=+—H1L

FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services

as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

R-BALUES(TRBALAARMEAR) 5
RERBACAIEKZHE

Emoluments

paid or receivahle

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

the management

Employer's of the affairs
contribution to of the Company
retirement  or its subsidiary

Fees Salaries henefit scheme undertaking Total
RESRMY
EREEALT
SHNEAR
B H RS
BINERIGE EGHESL:
Name e ik ¥e ZEFHF A fag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n TET THET THR TR
Executive directors HTEE
Chan Yuk Charm (a) 2@ = = = = =
Wei Zhenming (b) EH(D) 1,500 = = = 1,500
Deng Jianguo (c) HEB(c) 1,000 = = = 1,000
Independent non-executive directors BikHTEE
Liu Ting (d) = (d) = = - = -
Ng Ki Man (e) REH(e) 55 = = = 39
Xiao Ganghua (f) L) - - - - -
Lo Lai Lai Samantha (g) EEE(Q) 109 - - - 109
Hu Ruixuan (h) i) 94 = - - 94
Wong Wai Kit (h) aEEN) 9% - - - %
2,852 - - - 2,852

ERRREEBRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

= e B 7R R MR )

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2024

13 EEZBARNE )

(@) E=RE
(&)

BITBRAEZME

BHE-_Z-_NMF=-A=+—A801

FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services

as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

R—AALNER(TRBALAZENBLAR) 51

RERBHE AR e
Emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of
director's other
Services in
connection with
the management
Employer's of the affairs
contributionto of the Company
retirement  or its subsidiary
Fees Salaries  benefit scheme undertaking Total
HESRM
BBERARA
BELEYNG
EBHR%
BINETEE  MENSREYR
Name i we e ZEEHRR bl 6 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL TAT TAT
Executive directors HTES
Meng Jin Long (i) AEE) 122 = = = 122
Chan Yuk Charm (a) RIS H (a) 1,000 = = = 1,000
Wei Zhenming (b) HiRA() 392 = = = 392
Independent non-executive directors ﬁﬁ#iﬂﬁé?
Ren Guo Hua () FERE( = = = = =
Chen Fang (k) Wﬁz(k) 14 - - - 14
Cheung Ka Yue () FE) 50 - - - 50
Liu Ting (d) 22 149 - - - 149
Ng Ki Man (e) RHEE(e) 100 - - - 100
Xiao Ganghua (7 HRIE() 140 z - - 140
1,97 - - - 1,97
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g

(h)

(i)

0

(k)

(0]

Mr. Chan Yuk Charm was removed as executive director of the
Company on 10 January 2025.

Mr. Wei Zhenming appointed as executive director and
Chairman of the Company on 10 November 2023.

Mr. Deng Jianguo appointed as executive director on 15 August
2024.

Ms. Liu Ting appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 3 April 2023 and resigned on 9 July 2024.

Mr. Ng Ki Man appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 August 2023 and resigned on 13
August 2024.

Mr. Xiao Ganghua appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 26 April 2023 and resigned on 22
August 2024.

Ms. Lo Lai Lai Samantha appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 9 July 2024.

Ms. Hu Ruixuan and Mr. Wong Wai Kit appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 15
August 2024.

Mr. Meng Jin Long resigned as executive director of the
Company on 10 November 2023.

Mr. Ren Guo Hua resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 3 April 2023.

Mr. Chen Fang resigned as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 26 April 2023.

Dr. Cheung Ka Yue resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 August 2023.

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate
disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the chief
executives is made in the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

b T EN AT )

13 EE2®ARAER B

(a)

EERBETHRAEZME
(&)
IS -

(a) BEEXENR-_Z-_HF—A
THRWBEADNAMITES -

(b) BERSBAEER_Z_=F+—
A+ HEZERARRMNITE
EREIE -

(c) HERELER -_ZE_MENA
+HEEZEARITES -

(d) BlsLZt+R_T-_=FmWA=
HEZT AR RBIIERTT
%iﬁ%:%:@itﬂha
BHE -

(e) RUESFEER-_ZT_=FNA
—BEZREARNRRIELIEH
TEEYR _ET_MENA
+=BBT -

f HRIZEXER-_ZE-_=FNA
Z+ABEZTAEARREL
FMITEEIR T _MEN
AZ+=HEHE-

(8 EERBZXLR_ZT_NF+A
NEERERRRBBELIEH
TE= -

(hy HHREIZREREEELEER -
Z_OFENATHEBEERER
ARRBIIFAITES °

SEEENR T _=F+—
T HBIARARMITES -

HELEEN _E_=FNA
HEEARRBY IENITE

#IHR mE

k) BRHAER-_ZT-_=ZFNTA
Z+ABBEARRRBILIEHR
TESH -

() RKEABIR-_ZE=_=FNA
%E%E$@iﬁ1#ﬁﬁ§

RRAFBMTEFEHARBMAR
BITIRAR » Bt - BEHRERA
VERSITHRERSTBRABRZH
A

REE-_T-_RAF=A=+—H
LHEE  ARARYERIMNES
I RERME - ERBBFEEMN
AANEE E B A A E B 2 S8R
SUELBEBFHE(CTHF
') °

ERRREEBRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

13 EEZBARNE )

(b) Directors’ termination benefits (b) ESZHAILERER
None of the directors received or will receive any termination REBEE_ZE-_RF=A=+—H
benefits during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil). IEFE - $iEES0 WE IR
BAEMKIEEERMN(ZT =M
Fm) o
(c) Consideration provided to third parties for (c) BEREZREMEE=
making available directors’ services 2K E
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did not REBEE-_ZE-_RF=A=+—H
pay consideration to any third parties for making available IFE  AEBRVERERES
directors’ services (2024: Nil). fREMEME=ZSTXNRE(ZZ
ZPOE M) o
(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (d EEUES SZZFESEE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled iz EBREZEEERE
bodies corporate by and connected entities CERASRAZER - E
with such directors ERREMRZ 2ER
As at 31 March 2025, there was no loans, quasi-loans and RZE-_RAF=A=+—8 "
other dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled MIUNESE IRFEFEHE
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors REZEEEWHECEBAT
(2024: Nil). BAZER EEFRHEMRS
ZH(ZT_MF : &) -
(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EZINRE  ZHHEHNF

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Group had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2025
(2024 Nil).

2B RER
AEBMERANEREKILE
ARG - BYEREH - MRZF
BARS RERGHFAEE
EFEEEHEEEE RS
BREBE_ZE-_AF=RA=+—
B LEF & /9 F R ok F 7 A 1) B
MABB(ZZEZYF - £],) »
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13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DIRECTORS (continued)

(f)

e MR R MR o)

13 EE2®ARAER B

Five highest paid individuals f EBERESFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in BHE-_ZT-_AF=HA=+—HL
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 comprise 2 FE AEERERSHFALE
directors and 3 employees (2024: comprise 2 directors and 3 EMAEER=4RE(ZZE N
employees). The details of the emoluments payable to the 3 F:BEMBEER=FEE) -
employees (2024: 3) during the year are presented below: FNEMNZ=R(ZE T : =

Z)EEZMEHIBEYMT
2025 2024
—E-FHE —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
Salaries and other short-term employee HFEREMEEESET

benefits 1,266 920
Pension costs — defined contribution plan BREKA — ERBHKETE 54 45
1,320 965

Number of individuals
AE
2025 2024
ot~ - —E N4

Emoluments band
HK$1 — HK$1,000,000

e EE
17T — 1,000,000/ 7T

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 V¥ - MEKRZRE

Computer, Other
office Construction in properties
Furniture and ~ equipment and Leasehold Motor progress |eased for
Building fixtures machinery  improvement vehicles (note) own use Total
Bl HAE HEIR AN
BT GRAREE  RGERES HERE i3 () HENE Eh)
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AL ThL ThL Th Th T AL
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-ECmE
ZA=tT-ALEE
(Opening net book amount ENEAFE 5 16 18 S 37 164,388 3,79 168,533
Currency translation differences ~ JMEAEZE - - (1) - (1) (14022) (52) (14,076)
Additions hE - - - - - - 885 885
Lease termination HER - - - - = = (1,182) (1,182)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT - (7) 9) - (294) - - (310
Charge for the year EMER - 9) (4) - - - (1,666) (1679)
Closing net hook amount EXEEEE - - 4 - 2 150,366 1,779 152171
As at 31 March 2024 e L3
ZA=t-H
Cost A - 1,0% 681 1573 434 260430 9,084 273,298
Accumulated depreciationand  2:HTEREE
impairment - (1,096) (677) (1,573) (412) (110,064) (7,305) (121,127)
- - 4 - 2 150,366 1,779 152171
Year ended 31 March 2025 BZ-8-1E
ZAZt-ALEE
Opening net book amount EMERFE - - 4 - 2 150,366 1,779 152,171
Currency ranslation differences ~ SMEHREZE - - 1) - (12) (2,926) (1 (2,940)
Acquired on acquisition of a WE—RHBLARES
subsicary (Note 28(d)) (PH328(d)) 2,063 47 9,262 - - 20473 13,711 45,956
Charge for the year MR = - 0] - - - (1,384) (1,385)
Reversal of impairment loss ERERE = = = = = 1453 = 1,433
Closing net hook amount EREEFE 2,063 447 9,264 - 10 169,366 14,105 195,255
As at 31 March 2025 ot 3
ZA=t-8
Cost R 2,063 1,543 9,942 1,573 434 211,971 22,1% 316,326
Accumulated depreciatonand  ZEHTERFE
impairment = (1,096) (678) (1,573) (424) (108,611) (8,689) (121,0M)
2,063 447 9,264 - 10 169,366 14,105 195,255
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Note: As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of interests in leasehold
land defined as right-of-use asset were included in the carrying
amount of construction in progress of approximately HK$32,339,000
(2024: HK$32,744,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2025, in view of the continuous
loss recorded by the Group from the hotel operation business,
the management concluded there was indication for impairment
construction in progress related to the hotel operation business.
The Group estimated recoverable amounts of the construction in
progress based on fair value less cost of disposal and is estimated
by independent professional valuer, Valplus Consulting Limited, who
are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Accordingly,
reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,453,000 (2024: Nil) in respect
of construction in progress was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group entered into a number of lease agreements for the use
of office premises in Hong Kong and the PRC, with lease terms of 1
to 16 years (2024: 1 to 3 years). The net book value of the Group’s

14

15

e MR R MR o)

M  BERRZE=

iz R-_Z-_RF=A=1+—80 RE5H
FHEEENHET WESNER
{E4932,339,000/8 L (= Z M4 :
32,744,000 ) BB B EARELIEZ
BREEMA o

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=+—RHILFE"
ERNAEERE S BXBEERBE
B BEERAMLAELEEXKERAN
ERIBFERETR - AEEREAR
FER SR A G ET R IR A AT EIU
©R - WHB L SEMEMERERS
RAR(EAEBAEMEeE8)#ET
S - Eitt - MERIRERNRERERE
61,453,000 L (ZZE-_WF : T)B
REBEE-T-_RAF=A=+—HIFE
BB R R o

HEERE

AR B FAES L BB AYELT
S EREHH  BEHR—EHAE
—BopE —E)  AREEE

lease liabilities was as follows: BEMNEEFERT
2025 2024
—E-FE —E_OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FABT
As at 1 April RUA—A 2,100 4,708
Addition NE = 885
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 28(d)) U g — R BT 8 2 A (B 3E28(d)) 6,353 -
Lease payments HER (1,490) (2,307)
Interest expenses (Note 8) BRI (K5ES) 60 151
Lease termination HERIE - (1,255)
Exchange difference EHZER (5) (82)
As at 31 March R=RA=+—8H 7,018 2,100

ERRREEBRAF
2024/2025%

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

15 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 15 HE&Ew
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recognised lease HE-_ZT-_RAF=A=+—HILFE"
liabilities of approximately HK$6,353,000 though acquisition of a AEBFEBWE BB ®ERA
subsidiary. Addition to the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities EAREL6,353,0008T c REE-Z
for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounted to approximately “WFE=ZA=+—HBItFE  FHE
HK$885,000, due to new lease of office. BEMIEEAEZANE 4 A885000%

7T ERERBEAE 2 #EA o

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group has no committed lease RIE_HER T NF=A=1+—
agreements not yet commenced, and no short-term and low-value H - RNEEEAGE KRG HER
lease entered by the Group for both years. % BAEENMEFERNLETLE

H R BEHED

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the total cash outflow REBEEZE_ZEZ-_RAF=ZA=+—HL
for lease amounted to approximately HK$1,490,000 (2024: FE G HYNBESTHEENE
HK$2,307,000). 1,490,000/ 70( ==& — P94 : 2,307,000
BIT) o
Future lease payments are due as follows: RREER K BIEERAT -
Minimum
lease
R-BE-RE payments Interest  Present value
As at 31 March 2025 =A=+-—H BEEENR FE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FERT FExT
Not later than one year @ —F 1,205 (266) 939
Later than one year and not — & A BB N
later than two years 536 (250) 286
Later than two years and not ME BT BEERF
later than five years 1,634 (675) 959
More than five years BEAF 5,979 (1,145) 4,834
9,354 (2,336) 7,018
Minimum
lease
R-ZE-MEF payments Interest  Present value
As at 31 March 2024 =A=+—H SEHRERSK FLE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT
Not later than one year THE—F 1,708 (59) 1,649
Later than one year and not later than ~ —% A HEBTHBEMRFE
two years 455 4) 451
2,163 (63) 2,100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

15 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

16

15 #HEEE#®

2025 2024
—E_RE —EPF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Current R 939 1,649
Non-current JERED 6,079 451
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 7,018 2,100
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 16 SEREFYE
FOR SALE
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2023 RZZE-_=FMAF—H 749,852
Additions B 25,618
Reversal of impairment JRERE D 2,168
Exchange difference PE R =58 (53,542)
As at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R-ZE-_NME=A=+—HBK
—E-FA—H 724,096
Reversal of impairment JRERE D 4,193
Exchange difference fEH =5 (11,410)
As at 31 March 2025 R-EBE-RFE=A=+—H 716,879

Notes:

The amount of properties under development for sale and expected
to be recovered after more than one year is HK$716,879,000 (2024
HK$724,096,000).

Properties under development for sale are situated on leasehold land
located in the PRC.

At at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of interests in leasehold
land defined as right-of-use asset were included in the carrying
amount of properties under development for sale of approximately
HK$278,849,000 (2024: HK$282,076,000).

Wik

BRFEREE —F AR B FEE
J& ) #3018 /716,879,000 7T (=
T P4 ¢ 724,096,000 7T) °

FERRPYELCNFREZEE LM
oo

RZZE-_RF=A=+—H0 REA
EREEENEE L HERNERE
#9278,849,000/8 7L (— & — M0 £ :
282,076,000 L) E B EEFEER
PYEZREERA °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b TN AT )

17 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 17 MEA R 215
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2025. R-E-_RFEZA=Z+—HZTEWE

Place of
incorporation/

RABREWT -

Particulars of issued
share capital/

Proportion of
ordinary shares

establishment and Principal activities registered capital held by
Name kind of legal entity and place of operations  and debt securities the Group
BRITRE
AR R TEEER HMERK FEB T
£% REEERER —ESiE BERSZHE ZERLA
(%)
Crown Finance Holdings Samoa/Limited liability ~ Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100%*
Limited company in Samoa of US$1 each
ERemERARAR BED/ BRAF EREEGREER 10,0008% G AR E &
1ZT 2 ERR
Grandlife Investment Co. Samoa/Limited liability  Investment holding in 10,000 ordinary shares 100%*
Limited company Samoa and provision of US$1 each
T ARAF of comprehensive 10,0000 FAEE
healthcare business 132 EimAR
HEREEDREERE
RUEREREER
Sino Capital Corporation Limited Hong Kong/Limited Investment holding HK$10,000 100%
FEEIRIERER AT liability company in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
BB/ BRAR EEBREER
Capital International Group LimitedHong Kong/Limited Investment holding in HK$10,000 100%*
IR ER AR liability company Hong Kong 10,000/ 7T
BB/ BRRE EREBREER
Yipin Jiangshan of China Liquor  Hong Kong/Limited Trading and developing  HK$10,000 100%*
Group Co., Limited liability company of premium white 10,0007 7T
PREMIILEEEE &8,/ AR AT spirit
BRARA BERLESRERE
Jumbo China Investment Ltd Hong Kong/Limited Investment holding in HK$10,000 100%
BREKEERNA liability company Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
EE/BRAF EBEBREER
REDER R ORI PRC/Wholly owned Trading and developing  Registered capital of 100%*

BRARS foreign enterprise of premium white RMB10,000,000
ME 2EINETE spirit AR
BERBESRERE AR #10,000,0007T

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

17

o) NGIPA= 1))

Particulars of issued
share capital/

Proportion of
ordinary shares

establishment and Principal activities registered capital held by
Name kind of legal entity and place of operations  and debt securities the Group
BRITRAE
e R EEEER HEfERR KEE T
18 RERERER Sk BEESF 2 HE EEREA
(%)
RER ORI BR AR PRC/Wholly owned Trading and developing  Registered capital of 100%*
foreign enterprise of premium white RMB100,000,000
FE 2EINGLE spirit A AR
BERBESRER AR #100,000,0007T
—m L (mIDEER PRC/Wholly owned Trading and developing  Registered capital of 100%*
BRAR foreign enterprise of premium white RMB50,000,000
FE BN E spirit M E AR
BERBE S RER AR#50,000,0007T
M RF& At AEERE PRC/Wholly owned Trading and developing  Registered capital of 100%*
BRARS foreign enterprise of premium white RMB100,000,000
FE BN E spirit M E AR
BERBE S RER AR #100,000,0007C
BB EREEARARS  PRC/Wholly owned Hotel and property Registered capital of 100%
foreign enterprise investment in PRC RMB425,620,000
HE2ENGLE EFERBBERDE SMER
AR #425 620,000

* Shares held directly by the Company.

= These companies do not have English names.

* RN BADREERA ©

2 RFARLEEICETE

ERRREEBRAF
2024/2025%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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18 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

176

18 HMEUWRIE - AR

AND DEPOSITS Riz®
2025 2024
—E-RF —EOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT
Non-current FETRED
Rental deposits Mazse 161 435
Current B
Other receivables E b U GRIA 4,776 546
Deposits paid for purchasing premium BEEHHENENES
white wine - 32,517
Prepayment for construction materials BEMATEN A 94,292 =
Prepayment for construction costs FREERK TR FRIE 105,007 =
Prepayments and deposits (note a) AR FIE RIS (MisFa) 232,047 230,431
VAT and other tax receivables E(E R & E A R IR 12,923 6,899
Deposits for other borrowings HinEEiZe = 3,642
449,045 274,035
449,206 274,470

Note:

(a)

Included in prepayments and deposits, amounted of approximately
HK$227,214,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000) (2024
HK$230,331,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000)) made by the
Group which represented prepayments for procuring the acquisition
of a potential property development project in the City of Weihai, PRC.
It represented acquisition of lands from individual parties amounts
ranging from RMB2 million to RMB8.5 million. The amounts will be
transferred to properties under development for sale when the Group
obtains contractual usage rights of the relevant lands and properties.
In the subsequence period, the Group and supplier have agreed to
cancel the contract and the amount will be refunded before 31 March
2026.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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BT -

(a)

SFABRRERIESH NS BB
FRIA#227,214,0008 7T (HE R A
R#212,502,00070) (ZE =4 :
230,331,000 T (HE R AR
212,502,0007T) ) + & FA R e B Y i
PR —IEETEYERRIER
BITERT I o EfRmER A T HE LT
i SENTARB2EETLEARE
85EETT - EAKEREHAE TR
MEMENERRER  ZEREEE
BEGERETRYE - Hit - A5E
BEEEREDEZEL TR
EoRNFE=ZA=+—HARENHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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19 INVENTORIES 19 FE&
2025 2024
—E-RE —EOE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Premium white spirit BE A 37,471 108,205

20 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND

20 ZREFEARITESREIR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBFEESEEY
2025 2024
—E-RF —T g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Bank balances RITHEER 110,731 177,587
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEFEY 110,731 177,587
Restricted bank balances S2PR (50 SR T A B 1,291 1,626

R-E-_FHF=ZA=+—8 "%
107,746,000 /& 7Tt ( — & = 9 4 :
170,269,000 7T) 2 B & R RTTAEER LA
AREFELFRRAPRE BT - AR
KA EEEmIS EARLE - AR
KRR RINERBEARBELPRER
Hp B AR 0 2 FINEE 1 AR B K AR 51 P
R o

As at 31 March 2025, cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$107,746,000 (2024: HK$170,269,000) respectively are
denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB
is not a freely convertible currency in the international market. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of exchange
control promulgated by the government of the PRC.

#11,291,000 ;T ( Z T Z 0 F
1,626,000/ 7T ) #9 5 BR il (£ AR 1T A5 84
RUARERIFHOEBLRA °

Restricted bank balances of approximately HK$1,291,000 (2024
HK$1,626,000) was frozen by the court regarding legal case.

STRREMERA T
2024/20255F ].77
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21 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21 HtEARIEREGARE

2025 2024

—EC-ERF —EoEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Construction and development cost payables R EERERKA 72,953 299,310

Payable for acquisition of property, plant and WHEmE - B KEE 2 FER

equipment FRIE 19,866 =

Contract liabilities (note) EHaEEIEL) 136,450 141,706

VAT and other tax payables ET R A FE TR 10,769 10,371

Salaries payables i A E=ac 6,949 6,640

Accrued expense EER S 41,978 36,852

288,965 494,879

Note: The contract liabilities are mainly arising from pre-sales of properties of M -6 AGEZERBEEBEBEWERE

Weihai Project. The Group received payments from customers based & o REBERMEHREESHHTENH

on billing schedules as stipulated in the property sales contracts. EREREDEFPNR - BERET
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance under HES D ZATEIT K -

the sales contracts.

The contract liabilities at the beginning of the year HK$141,706,000 FHAENAELL41,706,0008 T (=F
(2024: HK$132,083,000). No revenue recognised for both years of — P94 ¢ 132,083,000 7L) o = F
2025 and 2024, what was included in the contract liabilities balances ZRFR T ZOFER R -
at the beginning of the year, the movement of contract liabilities FUEHNARERT GHBEED
represented the exchange differences and the refund of deposits RERZBRRBRM ZES
received.
22 BORROWINGS 22 B8
2025 2024
—E-RE —EPUE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Entrusted loan (note a) ZrtER(FisEa ) 797,497 806,726
Other borrowings (note b) EmEE (FisEb) = 2,000
797,497 808,726
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B SMEREIBEZER—FA
current liabilities: BEZE&R
Entrusted loan ZEEXR - (806,726)
Other borrowings HuEE - (2,000)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities HIEIEREN B 2 £ 58 797,497 —

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated FlnanC|aI Statements (Continued)

22 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 9 November 2018, /& B EARE 2B R A F(“Weihai Runhe”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an entrusted debt investment agreement with Asia Alliance Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“Asia Alliance Asset”), an independent
third party, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch (“Harbhin Bank”)
pursuant to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan in the amount of
RMB660,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$815,232,000)
for a term loan of 3 years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum (“Asia
Alliance Asset Loan”). The borrowing is secured by the pledge of
Weihai Runhe construction-in-progress “Real Estate Registered
Certificate” which will be in custody by Harbin Bank. The funding
will be used for construction work of Golden Beach No. 1 Project.
The final drawdown amount of this loan was RMB500,000,000
and the remaining undrawn facility amount was lapsed. This loan is
guaranteed by Mr. Meng Jin Long, being the legal representative of
Weihai Runhe and a former director of the Company.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has not paid the bank loans from
Harbin Bank of approximately HK$806,726,000. Harbin Bank has
initiated legal proceedings against the Group to recover the outstanding
loan amount owed to them. According to the final court order issued
on 5 January 2024, the Group is liable for the default principal and
interest at an annual rate of 9.9%. Bank has the right to demand
immediate repayment based on the loan agreement, and as a result,
the bank has the right to serve a notice and require Weihai Runhe
to repay the entire entrusted loan of principal amount and interest of
approximately HK$806,726,000 (equivalent to RMB744,281,000) on
demand (the “On Demand Clause”). As at 28 March 2025, the Harbin
Bank agreed to allow the Group to repay the outstanding amount on
27 March 2028 with no interest to be charged and waived the On
Demand Clause. The bank loans had been reclassified to non-current
as at 31 March 2025 therefore.

The Group’s other loan is interest free and repayable within 1 year.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the other loan has been fully
settled.

B B 7 R I R )

22 BE#®)

BT -

(a)

RZZF-NF+—ANRA KRF—
XEEZEMBAR  BFUEREER
EXARAF(REEKR])EERE
BIRTTRRDTT([MRRERIT]) B —
EBUE=ZTHAEEETEAR
AE([EHMBEE I RFEER
BREWH @ Bt BEBRESS
2 A R % 660,000,000 7T (18 & 7 49
815,232,000 7T ) WE K - ENF
HA=F RFENXe6ELA(TE
BMBEEEN]) - 28 EAEERR
BAMGERTREN T BESLER ]
IR RRRBRTRE - HEE
RESKARSSESRAEEZET
2 ZEFNERRERSERARY
500,000,0007T * #& FARIREREVELE ©
BOKM - RIBERTHEEBERD
EERRARKRRBNAEETR S
FAELER -

RZZE-_WMF=A=+—8 ~5£H
& R 2 A I BB SR 1T 49 806,726,000
BILZIRITER - BWERARITERA
EEIRAAERD - UIRE R EE
MERSHE - BEERNR T ZMNF
—AAAEMBHSEERSS - A%
MﬁﬁL%$é&¢ﬂI%mmﬂ
c RIBERBE - RITAEERIL
%ﬁ B - SRITEEEL AN
BERFEEBRRRERIAEEETE

z”m%%l‘ﬁ&ﬂ . 806,726,000
B (RS /\E%744281 0007T)
([RERGR] -R-_ZE-_HF=A

Z+N\H - BRERITRAEATASE
ER-_Z-NF=ZA=-+EREEH
REEKIE - BTREFIE - WER R
RESRGER - At - RZTEZREF=
A=+—H ROTIEHFECEFHEAR
3}5//“1@

AEENEMERAEERER—F
AEE BE_ZT-_AF=-A=+—

BLEFE - REHRE28U5E -

ERRREEBRAF
2024/2025%

179
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23 PROMISSORY NOTE 23 A HEE
2025 2024
—E-RE —E_NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Promissory note: EEEE
— More than 1 year but less than 3 years — BB —FEDR=F 22,623 =

On 27 March 2025, the Group issued promissory note with aggregate
principal amount of HK$32,110,000 as of the consideration to
acquire the entire equity interest in POl K& 2B EEEEF
fR A &]. The fair value as at issue date is HK$22,623,000. Details
of promissory note are set out in Note 28(d) to the consolidated
financial statements. The promissory note is unsecured, interest-free
and would mature on 26 March 2028.

24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

R-ZE-_RAFE=A_-++H ANEHEZR
177K % #8258 532,110,000 7T 2 # H,
= EARENIIXFeRNEESE
BEERARI KA ER ZRE - 10
THE 2 A¥EAE22,623,000%E 7T °
FAZEBRFBRENGEVBRERME
28(d) - FHEBERAEER - 2ERE
RZZEZN\F=HA=+"BHH -

24 EEBEERSE

Right-of-
use assets
FEREEE
HK$'000
T
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2025 HRZZE-_=FA—H ZZE_WNFE=AF=+—H
—E-RFMA—H =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 28(d)) U B8 — RS B B 2 &) (B 5E28(d)) 1,588
At 31 March 2025 RZE-_RAF=A=+—H 1,588

At 31 March 2025, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$121,892,000 (2024: HK$120,283,000) have
not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams to utilised such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted
to HK$118,542,000 (2024: HK$118,542,000) has no expiry date
and certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$3,350,000
(2024: HK$1,741,000) expire within five years under the current tax
legislation of the respective jurisdictions.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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R-_TBE-_RE=ZA=+—8 BE@H
TBEE4121,892,00058 T (- =M
4 : 120,283,000/8 7T ) MIEEHR EE
= ARTER - RE R K 8L T8 R K 5K F
BRENSAZEEE - BRESEE
BEOBITHRBEEN  RERRIEE
8118542000 L (Z T Z M F :
118,542,000/ 70 ) W fE/m B 8 - &
F R R T 1E E5183,350,0008 0 (=&
ZPY4F ¢ 1,741,000 ) R AFRE
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Notes to the Consolidated FlnanC|aI Statements (Continued)

25 SHARE CAPITAL

B B 7 R I R )

25 BA

Number of
shares  Share capital
RGEHER &N
HK$'000
FHET
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: Eﬁéﬁ&%{i el
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and RZZEZ=FmMWA—A -
1 April 2024 —EoNF=ZA=+—HBK
—EUFMPA—H 3,532,900,000 1,998,309
Right issue (Note a) HAR (Pff7Ea) 1,766,450,000 89,291
Subscription of new shares (Note b) REEF D (H5Eb) 1,059,870,000 155,448
Consolidation of shares (Note ¢) & 0I5 (BisEe) (6,041,259,000) =
At 31 March 2025 A—_E_RF=H=+—H 317,961,000 2,243,048

Notes:

(c)

On 9 September 2024, the Company announced that it proposed to
raise approximately HK$93,268,000, before share issue expenses of
approximately HK$3,977,000 by issuing 1,766,450,000 rights Shares
(the “Rights Shares”) by way of Rights Issue at the subscription price
of HK$0.088 per Rights Share, on the basis of two Rights Share for
every one existing Shares held on the record date. Completion of the
Rights Issue took place on 29 November 2024.

On 20 January 2025, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with seven subscribers who are independent third parties.
Pursuant to this subscription agreement, the Company allotted and
issued 310,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.88 per
share. The issue of subscription shares was completed on 19 February
2025.

At a extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 26
March 2025, an ordinary resolution was passed to approve the share
consolidation of every twenty issued existing shares of HK$0.01 each
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each of the Company (the
“Consolidated Share”). The capital reorganisation were effected on 28
March 2025.

All the new shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all aspects.

b

(@)

(c)

RZZE-_MFEAANB  KAREM
wé@MkEt%ﬁLma%me%
ARG (TERERA ) - ZRE8A
HEFE—RBERGEZMBRER
Bz EE - LERERK%0.088
BT RIBEZITHRRD - £EL
93,268,000 7T ( & FBk B 19 847 52
X 493,977,000 ) « HREKR=F
—mE+— ﬂfJFj'LETEﬁX

RZZBEZRAF—AZ+H ' AAAH
+EZRBATLRERE - Z5RE
ANBBME=F - BIBEZRERZE
ZFQET%?H&O.SS?%FLEE%*&?‘??
310,000,000/% 4~ &) & o B
T’ﬁﬁ‘ﬁé‘ﬁEEAfyfﬁi ﬂ+jLE
SERK °

RZB-RAFE=A-+BRTZAK
”ﬂ%?ﬁﬁﬁAi Lﬁ*ﬁ%@
RBR - BEBAARBZTRER
EﬁomﬁnzaﬁﬁﬁﬁkPAw
ARG REEO0.05/8 T2 A BHIZ A
(TEpRHB]) - RAEHER=Z
—RFE=A=Z+N\BLEW -

FRBTOMEFNES T ES R
RERMNFBF SRS -

ERRREEBRAF
2024/2025%
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26

27

182

B B S AR MY A

OTHER RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution in excess of
nominal value of share capital.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities of which the functional currency is not
HKD.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved
by its shareholders to adopt on 25 September 2015 and was
amended on 9 September 2019.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for 10 years from 20 September 2021. Under
the Share Option Scheme, the grant of Share Options will provide the
Grantees an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company
with a view to achieving the objectives of (i) motivating the Grantees
to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and (ii) attracting and retaining the Grantees whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

The options granted may be exercised in whole or in part by the
grantees. The exercise period of the options granted shall be a
period of time to be notified by the directors to grantees, which the
directors may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
the offer of grant.
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 27 LR RERNSR =)
The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the PATER IR AR T 8 R AR A BER A
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme R ERTE(BREEITERRITED
and any other share options schemes of the Company (including MBI RE) AT RE R i B AR i 18 pAME{T 12
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any A RS 2EERITHRO &S
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company HETSHBBARRRERDZEITRMOH
then in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1% © FLiE— 2035 iR 1B UL BR 58 A FE AR
limit is subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval in a general BHAELANGBRRERNBERAG it
meeting. A o
There are no share options outstanding as at 31 March 2025 and RIE-RAFR-ZZE-_MF=A=+—
2024, B W ARITE R -
28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 REREER
(@) Notes supporting cash flow statement (a) BEEREXRMT
2025 2024
—E_RE —ZEOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Cash and cash equivalents comprise ReRESEEYERE
Bank balances IR1T4E% 110,731 177,587

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 RERBER @)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BEEFEMELEZEEHER

financing activities

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
BE HEAE 1BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FET
(Note 22) (Note 15)
(PzE22) (FIEE15)
MIApil2023  RZE-=FWATE . 8elze 4708 . _..866070
Changes from financing cash flows: FIEER4LHREEE
Drawdown of borrowings REEE 57,500 = 57,500
Repayment of borrowings BEREE (114,048) - (114,048)
Interest paid BAHE (125) - (125)
Repayment of principal portion BREESEE ReH D
of lease liabilities - (2,156) (2,156)
Repayment of interest portion BEMERBEZFERS
of lease liabilities - (151) (151)
Total changes from financing REMENRERELE
Ceashfows o omE 5679 @3N (8980
Other changes: Hoh &
Increase in lease liabilities from new EINABEHEZAEERE
leases - 885 885
Decrease in lease liabilities from  FAMER 2 AEAE
lease termination - (1,255) (1,255)
Exchange differences M5 =% (43,201) (82) (43,283)
Finance costs B AR 47 238 151 47389
Totalotherchanges __ HEftZ&es 4037 ... Y 3,736
At 31 March 2024 RZBE-_ME=F=+—H 808,726 2,100 810,826
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 RERBER @)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEFHFELEZEELHEK
financing activities (Continued) (%)
Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
B8 HESE ok
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TER FHET
(Note 22) (Note 15)
(BtE22) (Bt=E15)
M1Apil2024 RZE-RFRA-RA 80876 sy Wl
Changes from financing cash flows: FIEEH 4L HREEE
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (2,000) - (2,000)
Repayment of principal portion of  EEHEBEZ AL S
lease liabilities = (1,430) (1,430)
Repayment of interest portion of ~ EEHREGEZFEHH
lease liabilities = (60) (60)
Total changes from financing RERENRERESLD
cashflows BB 20000 . Uty e
Other changes: Hoh g
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui —FEI B B A - 6,353 6,353
Exchange differences fEHER (9,229) (5) (9,234)
Finance costs BT R = 60 60
Totalotherchanges  _  _ HwE®es® 9229 | 6408 ... (2,821)
At 31 March 2025 R-E-_RE=A=+—H 797,497 7,018 804,515

STRREMERA T
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 ReEREER®
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (c) HEMBAF
(i)  Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd (i)  HEGrandlife Healthcare
Holdings Ltd
On 5 July 2023, the Company entered into an RZE-_=F+AAA -
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of AARMEBLE=ZFEIL
60% equity interest in a subsidiary, Grandlife Healthcare —HBHE s WHE—BR
Holdings Ltd incorporated in Samoa, for an aggregate & EE g0 5 it A 32 2 BT B
cash consideration of HK$20,000. Grandlife Healthcare A |) Grandlife Healthcare
Holdings Ltd and its subsidiary were principally Holdings Ltd 2 60% f% # -
engaged in provision of consultancy service for set up of @3\ 2 K E B 20,000 #&
comprehensive healthcare business. Jt  ° Grandlife Healthcare

Holdings Ltd & £ i B 2 7]
FTERERR T KEEES

R EARE o
An analysis of liabilities over which control was lost: HEALEEHIE 2 BEDT
HK$'000
FHETT
Liabilities =N
Other payables and accruals HAbfE R RIBRERTBE (2,162)
Liabilities disposed of HEZEE (2,162)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 2 WS
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReERE 20
Liabilities disposed of HEZaE 2,162
Non-controlling interests PR AR (865)
Exchange reserve released upon disposal P BB RRRIE KR 203
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE 1,520
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b T EN AT )

28 BEeRhEEZER »®

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (c) HEMBARE)
(i)  Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd (i)  HEGrandlife Healthcare
(Continued) Holdings Ltd (#&)
Cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiaries HENBARIZEERA
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration received BYERSNRE 20
(i)  Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Corp. Limited (i) HEZABEEBEERL A
On 30 November 2023, the Company entered into an R-_BE-_=F+—A=+
agreement with an independent third party to dispose B NARIEBIE=TTF]
of 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Grandlife M ABE—FER
Healthcare Corp. Limited incorporated in Hong Kong, BB FMA L 2 B A A
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$10,000. EREREEEBERRARAZ
Grandlife Healthcare Corp. Limited was principally 100% L #E - IR KER
engaged provision of administration service in Hong 10,000/ 7T » AR FEEE
Kong. BRAREZRELEEBIR
HITHRF ©
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control HREmGIEZEERBE
was lost: DT
HK$'000
FAT
Assets aE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 298
Cash at banks R1TIRS _*
Receivables, prepayment and deposits EUWGIE  ENRIERES 2
Liahilities =L
Other payables and accruals HippMRa M ETaE (3,985)
Net liabilities disposed of HECZEEFHE (3,685)

* Less than HK$1,000

* A 51,000% 7T

BRREBEAR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 RERBER @)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (c) HEMBARE)
(i) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Corp. Limited (i) HEZABEEEEERL A
(Continued) (%)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HENB AR Z W
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration RERE 10
Liabilities disposed of HEZEE 3,685
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A 7 2 WS 3,695
Cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiary HERBARZIRERA
HK$'000
FBT
Cash consideration received BURIRESRE 10
Cash and bank balances disposed of HE RS RIRTTEREE —*
10
* Less than HK$1,000 * A 1,000/8 7T
(iii) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd (i) HEZAEEZRERAL
On 30 November 2023, the Company entered into R-BE-_=F+—F=+
an agreement with an independent third party to H  RNRFIEBEIE=FF]
dispose of 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Y—HE e KEE—M
Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Limited incorporated REBFMEZ M B A
in Hong Kong, for an aggregate cash consideration of AARNBERIERARA A
HK$100,000. According to the terms of the sales and 2 100% gtk - BIRSHRE
purchase agreement, the Group is obligated to pay #100,0008 7T - BRIBFEH
HK$32,517,000 (equivalent to RMB30,000,000) to WEZGR  AEEBE
the buyer for the net liabilities at the date of disposal. BREEBBHRAE XN
Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Limited and its subsidiary 32,517,000 7T (FHE R A
were principally engaged in investment holding in PRC. R #30,000,0007T ) A B &

BEFE - RARREERA
RAREEMBRREER
PR E IR E IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R MR o)

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 BEeRhEEZER »®

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (c) HEMBARE)
(iii) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd (i) HEZAXBEZRERL A
(Continued) (#%&)
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control HEEEGIE, EERAER
was lost: DT
HK$'000
FiBT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE MR 12
Receivables, prepayment and deposits FEWEIE - BRI RES 10,069
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 8
Liabilities afE
Income tax payable FERTPTIS TR (3,884)
Other payables and accruals BEMENAFIEREAE (44,194)
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEAE (8,519)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZEERE (46,508)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEWB AR 2 BE
HK$'000
FBT
Cash consideration RERE 100
Cash compensation ReME (32,517)
Net cash outflow Remt 58 (32,417)
Liabilities disposed of HEZaE 46,508
Exchange reserve released upon disposal RS 18 BRI (120,158)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBE A REE (106,067)

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R R MR

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 BERhEER »®

190

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

(iii)  Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd
(Continued)

Cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiary

(c) HEMBATR
(i) HEEZAREZERBRL A
(&)
HEMBARZESTA

HK$'000

FAET

Cash consideration received BYERERE 100
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHERE MIRITHEH (8)
Cash compensation paid BRREmE (32,517)
(32,425)

(d) Acquisition of asset through a subsidiary

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated 21
March 2025, the Group acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of P /Il KR F & 2B X5 E B R A &
(TEmJIX L) from B BB S EZERER QA (the
“Vendor”), and an independent third party to the Group, at a
consideration of HK$32,110,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB30,000,000), which shall be payable by the Group by the
issuance of the promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) to the
Vendor on the completion date.

The transaction was completed on 27 March 2025.

Va1 XAT is engaged in production of premium white spirit in
the PRC. The Group has acquired PO)II X/ so as to provide
production support for the Group’s premium white spirit
business.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2024/2025

(d) ZEBHBARKBEE
RERMA-—FT_A%=AH
—t—BMEERH  ARER
hERBEEEERERA R (K
B RAEEBIE=H KB
NIRF&2HE % EBER A
(Tl K1) 100% E BITRRA -
{18 532,110,00078 T (18 & R4
AR ®30,000,0007T) @ AEER
R BB BRI E S BITERL
FH(RERE L -

SR _FE_RAF=A=++tH
}E‘ZO

d Xt

mIIRFRPEREEEREL
E o AEECWRBIIIXRA - A
SAKENEERBERGREE
EXIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b T EN AT )

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 28 HeREER @
(d) Acquisition of asset through a subsidiary (d) ZEBHBARWBEEE)

(Continued)

This acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition
of assets rather than a business combination, given that
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets (i.e.

ENFIBBREENRTFESS
R — A AR LU By AT 8RB EE (B
ME - BENMRBAREREER
BE) ZHEPBCIEREEWREM

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets). EBEUHALR -
Notes HK$’000
B & FBT
Consideration transferred S2EERE
Promissory note EHEE (M) 32,110
Less: Fair value change of consideration payable B ENREZ AT EE (i) (9,487)
22,623
Notes: BIRE -

(i Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, conditionally
agreed to acquire 100% interest in the total consideration of
HK$32,110,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB30,000,000),
which will be satisfied in full by the issue of the note by the
Company (the “Promissory note”) at completion date. The
Promissory note is interest free and repayable after 3 years of
the issuance day of the note.

(ii) Based on the estimation made by the directors of the Company
and in view of the current market condition, management
considered that the fair value of the consideration is
approximately HK$22,623,000 at the date of completion of the
acquisition.

i RBREEEBZ  A2FARER
B KB AR A R R B U iE
JNIKFF100%#zm - BRER
32,110,000 7T (H8E R K A
FE#30,000,0007T) * AR A
R ARETERR(TERLE
BB - ALEEBERR
BRAREEETHR=
FRIEE -

(iy BREBEARRESELHNMGER
ZREIBANTR  BRER
RRERVEBEXBHROQT
B49/422,623,000 7T °

STRREMERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Acquisition of asset through a subsidiary

28 B REER )
(d) BBMEDARBEE )

(Continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of REEHBEREBEEREER
acquisition are as follows: BEEHINNT
HK$'000
FiBT
Consideration transferred BEERE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE MEE 45,956
Inventories rE 2,118
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEMEWEIE - ENFERIES 7,933
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEEY 7,253
Other payables and accruals EMENARIEREAE (32,696)
Lease liabilities HEBE (6,353)
Deferred tax liability FERIBEE (1,588)
22,623
HK$'000
FAET
Cash inflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WE-—BHRBEARZEER
Cash consideration paid ERBREERE -
Add: cash and cash equivalents acquired e BREzIRE RIASEEY 7,253
7,253
29 COMMITMENTS 29 #&if
Capital commitments BEAREIE

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group has capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements below in respect of the construction of the properties.

RIE-HEFER T -_NMF=ZA=1+—
B AEBR TSGR BRERPRE
RYECFTOERBENEARY -

2025 2024

—E-REF —EP4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FT

Construction of properties R 110,993 112,277

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b T EN AT )

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEBEALTRS
In addition to the transitions and balances with related parties details BRZERA M BmEREMEL TR
elsewhere in these consolidated finance statements, the Group had EEE IR 5 Mg - REBFRE
following transactions were carried out with related parties during A T 2 R SEHNMT o
the year.
Key management compensation FTEEEEME
Key management includes directors and senior management. The TEERERREERAREEE -3
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee BERBENXENEZEZEEREZHE
services is shown below: HIREAT -
2025 2024
—E_RE —E N4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Directors’ fee EEHE 2,852 1,967
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits HehEMEEEEET = -
Pension costs — MPF BASRA —REIERTESR = -
2,852 1,967
31 PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31 BEREE
As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the following items were used to RZEZRAFRZZ-MF=H=+—
secure entrusted loan granted to the Group: A THSEDARERETASERN
ZER
(i)  Pledge of the construction-in-progress “Real Estate Registered () ERESBERFFBEEIRERNIT
Certificate” held by Weihai Runhe, which represents the BETLER] - RERDAIET
hotel development under construction in progress and the iR e B mEANTE14R 16,2
properties under development for sale as set out in Notes 14 EREFZHEERRERGEERF
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. Y
(i) Pledge of the entire share capital amounted to (i) EWESBRNZBIRAEEA
RMB425,620,000 of Weihai Runhe. R#&425,620,0007T °
(iii)  Pledge of the entire share capital amounted to US$10,000 of (i)  EH#Grandlife Investment Co. Limited
Grandlife Investment Co. Limited. K2 EBA% AN EE10,0003 7T °
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32 KRR T ZHBAMR TR #
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE ich A
COMPANY
2025 2024
—E-EF T mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BRE M = =
Investment in subsidiaries RETB R I E = =
Deposits By - 349
_______________________________________________________________ SRR .t
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and H A EIGRIA - TAERIE KR
deposits & 352 3
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 4,138 8,386
... 4490 8389
Totalassets ... ®E®E .40 8738
Equity =
Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital % 2,243,048 1,998,309
Other reserves H b (a) (2,246,087) (2,000,678)
Totaldeficit ~ __________®\#% ] (3,039) | (2,369)
Current liabilities pEI=RE
Other payables and accruals HEMERIEREEaE 6,984 7,558
Borrowing BE - 2,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIB B A R FIE 167 167
Lease liability HEAE 378 1,004
1328 10,729
Non-current liability FEREBERE
_leaseliabilty ... ... MERE ~ . 378
Total liabilites ___ ______________&f®s ... 1%9 11107
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEAEE 4,490 8,738
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of KRR EEBBRRKESENZ
Directors on 27 June 2025 and was signed on its behalf —HENA-+HBHLE  WETIA
TREEEFSEE
Mr. Wei Zhenming Mr. Deng Jianguo
HMiRsa L BEELE
Chairman Executive Director
ES HITEE

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32 KRR T ZHBMRR TR R #
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =k IIE))
COMPANY (continued)
(a) Other reserves movement of the Company (a) AAFzHfhfFAES
Other
reserves
Hitif#
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2023 R-E-=%mA—A (2,090,815)
Profit for the year FREF 90,137
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 RZZE-_WNE=ZA=+—HK
—ENFmA—H (2,000,678)
Loss for the year FREIE (245,409)
At 31 March 2025 R-—FE-_AF=A=+—H (2,246,087)

STRREMERA T
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Financial Summary

MBREE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the NEEN &0 1R B 2 4R 6 SEE B

last five financial periods. AT e
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
—T--F  ZZT--f T=F _ZT”mE ZEZIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THET TER
Revenue Wz 13,866 17,499 = 183,461 111,407
(Loss)/profit before income tax Hﬁﬁ SHAI(EE),HEF (121,705) (919,821) (1,276,533) (115,762) 23,459
Income tax credit/(expense)  FTSEIE R, /(%) 15,823 192,843 206,531 (11,438) (7,323)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/ ST (105,882) (726,978) (1,070,002) (127,200) 16,136
(Loss)/profit attributable to AREBEEAEL(EER),/
owners of the Company ik (105,243) (726,372) (1,069,359) (126,785) 16,136
The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group I;‘% i S
and equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2021, Z=EF - ZFEZNFERZFE-AF=H
2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025. =t+—BrZEEHE BEEAEREARE

BARIEESHAT -

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

—E-—4F —E-— —E-=F it S —E-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT FHT FET TExT

Total assets EE®BE 3,632,759 2,972,705 1,656,507 1,438,155 1,510,839

Total liabilities BREEE (1,679,760) (1,660,265) (1,492,989) (1,316,957) (1,136,138)
Net assets EEFE 1,952,999 1,312,440 163,518 121,198 374,701

Equity attributable to owners ~ AA Bl H AERER

of the Company 1,952,782 1,312,964 164,779 121,198 374,701
Non-controlling interests FEERR S 217 (524) (1,261) = -
Total equity B 1,952,999 1,312,440 163,518 121,198 374,701

Crown International Corporation Limited
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